SEPOT7'22 s 9: 47 RCUD

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE Rt }
COMMISSIONER > TDD Access: Relay
Jared S. Chicoine e Gy 1-800-735-2964
Tel. (603) 271-3670
DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
Christopher J. Ellms, Jr. FAX No. 271-1526
Website:
DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY W SRy Nt
21 S. Fruit St., Suite 10
Concord, N.H. 03301-2429

September 6, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu,
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the N.H. Department of Energy (Energy) to enter into an amendment to an existing SOLE SOURCE
Contract Agreement with Southwestern Community Services, Inc., (VC #177511), Keene, NH, by increasing
the price limitation by $143,744 from $4,439,841 to $4,583,585 using additional Low-Income Home Energy
Assistance Program (LIHEAP) funds from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration
for Children and Families and by extending the completion date from September 30, 2022 to September 30,
2023 effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval.

This contract was originally approved by Governor and Executive Council on September 23, 2020 (Item #46)
and amended on March 24, 2021 (Item #45) and October 27, 2021 (Item #58). 100% Federal Funds.

Funding is available for FY2023 in the following account:

Department of Energy, LIHEAP FUEL ASST

02-052-052-520010-33540000

LIHEAP FUEL ASST FY2023
074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $143,744

EXPLANATION

This is an amendment to a contract that is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the
Community Action Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Low-Income Home Energy Assistance
Program (LIHEAP), their outreach and client service capabilities. NH DOE proposes to continue to
subcontract with the five CAAs who have successfully provided similar services at the local level for
more than three decades. The CAAs work closely with the NH DOE Fuel Assistance Program
Administrator in the implementation of several low-income programs.

The Low Income Home Energy Program (LIHEAP), known in New Hampshire as the Fuel Assistance Program
(FAP), for Program Year 21 (PY21) had $1,115,000 remaining unexpended in regular allocation funds. This
amendment adds those funds to the contract and gives the Community Action Agency additional time to expend
the funds in order to use them the upcoming heating season.



This Energy contract provides the Community Action Agency with program funds to support eligible New
Hampshire residents, especially the working poor, elderly and disabled citizens who are in need of assistance to
help pay for heating costs during the winter season. LIHEAP/FAP is a federally funded statewide program that
makes home energy more affordable for income-qualified families, disabled and elderly residents of New
Hampshire. Program funds are targeted to low-income households with high energy burdens. Federal law
establishes maximum income guidelines. Energy subcontracts to the five CAAs who are responsible for
providing FAP services at the local level.

In the event Federal Funds are not available, General Funds will not be requested to support this program.

espectfully submitted,

Jared Chicoine,
Commissioner



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: FUEL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT
SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.

AMENDMENT # 3

This Amendment dated August 25, 2022 is between the State of New Hampshire Department of
Energy, 21 South Fruit Street, Concord. Merrimack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter referred to as the
“State”) and Southwestern Community Services, Inc., 63 Community Way, P.O. Box 603, Keene,"
Cheshire County, NH 03431 (hereinafter referred to as the “Contractor™).

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafier referred to as the “Agreement™), Contract Number
1076440, as approved by Governor and Council on September 23, 2020 (ltem #46), as amended on
March 24, 2021 (Item #45) and October 27, 2021 (Item #58), the Contractor has agreed to provide

- certain Services, per the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in consideration of
payment by the State of certain sums as specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant 1o the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement may be
modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and only after
approval of such modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and

WHEREAS, The State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects,

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and conditions in
the Agreement as sct forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

1. Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and modified as
follows:

A) Completion Date: Amend Subparagraph t.7 of the Agreement by striking the
current completion date of September 30, 2022 and inserting in place thereof
the date of September 30, 2023.

B) Price Limitation: Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking the
current sum of $4.439,841.00 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of
$4,583,585.00.

C) Exhibit C — Payment Terms: Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph by striking the current
sum of $4, 439,841.00 and inserting.in place thereof the total sum of $4.583,585.00.

Amend Exhibit C, second paragraph b)' striking the current sum of $267, 150 00 and
inserting for administrative costs $281,524.00.

Amend Exhibit C, second paragraph by striking the current sum of $3.998,650.00 and
inserting for program costs $4,128,020.00.

CONTRACT AMENDMENT NH DEPT. OF ENERGY

SCS Amendment - Contractor [nitials:
Grani: 210iNHLIEA Date:
CFDA: 93.568 Page 1 of 3



Amend Exhibit C. third paragraph by striking the current contract dates of “October
1, 2020 through September 30, 2022" and inserting in place thereof “October 1. 2020
through September 30, 2023"

D) Exhibit D: Amend period covered by this certification to “October 1, 2020 to
September 30, 2023"

E) Exhibit E: Amend contract period dates to “October 1, 2020 to September 30,
2023~

2. Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by the Terms
and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder shall remain in full
force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in thc Agreement as it
existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first above
written.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

FOK Jared Chicoine, Commis#ioner

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

By:
(Name & Title of Person Authorized to Sign)
State of Ney> HAMoSAix¢
County of _CUresinive
On this_3le _ day of __ygust . 2022, before me, izt Cypteoau .
the undersigned officer, personally appeared _ P2l Banuel § , who

acknowledged himsel{/herself to be the (o of Southwestern Community
Services, Inc., a corporation, and that he/she being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing
instrument for the purposes contained therein

oy,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal. .,.\%_ OHOTE,'ZI

Muadi Gttt g‘? e %

Notary Public/Justice of the Peace
My Commission expires: -1{2 2oy g

%4;"'

J HARW
“atrrggg
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Approved as to form, execution and substance:

OFFICE OF ORNEY GENERAL
By: '
Assistant Attorney General

Date: September2, 2022 |

| hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the State of

New Hampshire at their meeting on , 2022.
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE
By:
Thtle:

SCS Amendment Contractor Inijials: B‘D
Grant: 210INHLIEA Date: éqz?ﬂma :
CFDA: 93.568 Page 3 of 3



CERTIFICATE OF VOTES

(Corporate Authority)
I, Kevin Watterson , an Officer of Southwestern Community Services, Inc,
{Namc) {Corporation name)
(Hereinafter the “Corporation’ ), a New Hampshire corporation, hereby certify that: (1) | am a duly
(Siate)

elected Officer of the Corporation; (2) | am familiar with the minute books of the Corporation; (3) | am duly
authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of such books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the
Corporation have authorized, on June 18, 2021, such authonty
{Date}
to be in force and effect until September 30, 2023.
(Contract termination date)

The person(s) holding the below listed position(s) are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the
Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:

- Beth Daniels - CEQ
{Name) (Position)
(Name) (Position)

(5) The meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with New Hampshire

{State of incorporation)
law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been modified, amended or rescinded
and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand as an Officer of the corporation this

26 day of _August , 2022 C()
a(/vrx/ { £ W{Z_ﬁ—/’/

Officer
STATE OF New Hampshire
COUNTY OF Cheshire
On this 26 day of August , 2022 , before me, Sarah E Croteau  the undersigned
Officer, personally appeared Kevin Watterson who acknowledged her/himself to be an Officer
of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. , a corporation and that she/he as such Officer being

authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, | hereunto set my hand and official seal.

golary Pubtic/3ust

Commlssmn Exglratlon Date: 7 {
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State of New Hampshire
- Departmient of State

CERTIFICATE

1, Dav'.id M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hambshirc. do hereby certify that SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY.
SERVICES, INC. is o New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 19, 1965.
1 further centify that all fecs and docunients required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing '

as far as this ofTice is concemed.

Business ID: 65514
Centificate Number: 0005755656

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto-sct. my I;mnd and causc 19 be affixed
the Scal of'the State of New Hampshire,
this 110 day of April A.D,2022.

=

\\‘1‘ .\i‘ AR RN tj

; David M. Scanlan
Secretary of State




e U . : DATE (RMDOAYYY)

—ACORD  CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY-INSURANCE~ e

[ THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, '|"HI5
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW, THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. ~

IMPORTANT: If the certificato holder Is en ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les} must have ADOITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
i SUBROGATION (S WAIVED, subject to the terms and condlitions of the policy, cenain policles may require an endorsemant, A statement on
this csrtificate does not confer rights to the certificate holdor in llsu of such sndorsement(s).

PRODUGER . HSNEC!  Ana O'Donneil, CPIW. CIC
Clark Morienson insurence : o [ . {503) 352.212% { g, raoy;(803) 3578481
PO Box 608 . ADoREss; 8odonnelihilbgroup.com # .
) INSUAERLS) AFFORDING COVERAGE d MAIC #

Keena ' NH 03437 - nsurera: Philadeiphia indemnily Insuranca Co. . 18058
INSURED . s : surerp; Malne Employers Mut ns Co * 11149 -

Southwestarn Community Services Inc. " INSURER C : ) -

63 Community Way - . . |omureno: i

PQ Box 802 o WIURZIR B :

Koeno 2 - NH 03431 DISURER £ ;
COVERAGES . CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 202210 2023 , "~ REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE UISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NDTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
. CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY, PAID CLAIMS.
[ROTR X UER]

R TYPS OF INSURANCE P30 wen POLICY NUMBER SR T T PR R T LouTs
: COMMERC AL QENERAL LIABRITY ! EACH OCCURRENCE . - 3 - 1,000,000
] coamsainoe [ ocom | PREMISES (Fu coamencey |3 100.000
] ) . ) ' MED EXP (Amr ong person} g 5.000
A PEPK2431763 067302022 | 06/30r2023 [ pensomaL aaov woury | | 5 1-000,000
csm;.magc.ue LWITAPPUIES PER ) , ; GENERAL AGGREGATE 3 2.006.000
%m\f .lem D Loc _ PRODUCTS . COMPIOPAGG | 4 2.000,000
’ 3 " = $
- COMBINED SINGLE LualT
AUTONOBLE LIABILITY . b2 $ 1,000,000
5] wrf st , BOOLY WIURY (Per person) | §
| £D [ ] SCHEDWED * :
A ] OwN omy || ires ‘PHPK2431766 _ 06/30/2022 | 0673072023 | BODILY INJURY (Par sccident) |
HRED, . MON-OVNED s v [PROPERTY BRAASE s
|_Javrososy |l arosomy L [Pon scchden}
s
[ umreiase T3 occun | ’ | eack ocoumasnce 3 2.000,000
A [ |excess s PHUBS20879 - | oersor022 | 0613072023 [cameoare < 2,000,000
ven | <] rerermon 3 1oooo . S g o s
wom:nscouruumn : :
ANDEMMOYERS LABLIY -y | X stayme [ {87 T
B |Srreiantrnen e o [M]|nea| [ 302800788 .. | oam1/2022 | 040172023 | E CACHACCORNT 3
(Mandaiory In WH] _ : . E.L DISEASE . EA B OYEE | 3 500,000
¥ yon, dencribe uncier " - 500,000
OESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS beow . £ OssEase . PoLcYumm |3 300 -
' PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY ' EACH QCCURRENCE .- | $1,000,000
AT R . PHPK2431763 0613012022 | 06/30/2023 | AGGREGATE $2.000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS | VEMICLES (ACORD 101, Addttional Rermaris Scheduie, nqhumch-a i more spice’d nqult«ﬂ

3o State: NH .
All officers Included for coverage

" _CERYIFICATE HOLDER i P - CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRISED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
o THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELVERED IN
NH Degartment of Energy ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

21 South Fruil Steel, Sl 10 -
. AUTHORZED REPRESEWTATIVE

1 Concord * , ; . N 0wl N‘L&t W Y Ny (s 5

. © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION, All rights reservad,
ACORD 25 {2016/0)3) Tho ACORD name and logo aro roglsterod marks of ACORD
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TOD Access: Retay NH

INTER!M COMMISSIONER
Jared Chicoine ~ 1-800-735-2064
_ Tel. (603) 271-3670

Christopher J. Ellms, Jr.

Website:
www . energy.nh.gov

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
21 8. Fruit St., Suite 10
Concord, N.H. 03301-2429

September 29, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu,
and the Honorable Council

State House :

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the N.H. Department of Energy (Energy) to enter into a Retroactive amendment o an existing
Contract Agreement (Contract # 1076440) with Southwestern Community Services, Inc., (VC #177511), Keene,
NH, by extending the completion date from September 30, 2021 to September 30, 2022 with no change inthe

* price limitation of §4,439,841.00 for the Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), effective retroactively to October 1,

- 2021 upon approval of Governor and Executive Council. This contract was originally approved by Governor and
Executive Council on September 23, 2020 (Item #46) and amended on March 24, 2021 (ltem #45). 100% Federal
Funds.

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive to allow the vendor additional time to expend the contract funds. US DHHS made
CARES Act funds available in FY21 which resulted in an increase in remaining funds for the annual fuel
assistance block grant funding. US DHHS allows the state and our. sub-grantees two years-to expend the funds.
By extending this contract, the Community Action Agency is able to continue their efforts to add more low-
income families to the approved clientele listing for assistance for the new heating season. :

This Energy contract provides the Community Action Agency with program funds to support cligiblc New
Hampshire residents, especially the working poor, elderly and disabled citizens who are in need of assistance to
help pay for heating costs this winter season.

The Fuel' Assistance Program (FAP) is a federally funded statewide program that makes home energy more
affordable for income-qualified familics, disabled and elderly residents of New Hampshite. Program funds are
targeted to low income households with high energy burdens: Federal law establishes maximum income
guidelines. Energy subcontracts to the five CAAs who are responsible for providing FAP services at the local
level. :

In the event Federal Funds are not available, General Funds will not be rcqucsicd to support this program.

espectfullysybmitted,
W o -~

Jared Chicoine
Director

JC/jcl



" NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: FUEL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT
SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.

AMENDMENT # 2

This Amendment dated September 24. 2021 is between the State of New Hampshire Department
of Energy. 21 South Fruit Street. Concord. Merrimack County. NH 03301 (hereinafter referred to as the
“State™") and Southwestern Community Services, Inc., 63 Community Way. P.O. Box 603. Keene.
Cheshire County, NH 03431 (hereinafter referred o as the “Contractor'}). '

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinatfter refecrred to as the “*Agreement”), Contract Number
1076440, as approved by Governor and Council on September 23, 2020 (ltem #46), as amended on
Muarch 24. 2021 (#45). the Contractor has agreed (o provide certain Services, per the tenns and
conditions specified in the Agreement and in consideration of payment by the State of certain sums as’
specified therein. ' : '

WHEREAS, pursuani 10 the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement. the Agreement may be
modified or amended only by a written instrument execuled by the parties thereto and only after
approval of such modification or amendment by the Governor and Council: and

WHEREAS. The State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects; ’

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and conditions in
the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree (o the following:

1. Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and modified as
follows: ‘ .

A) Complelion Date: Amend Subparagraph'1.7 of the Agreement by striking the
current completion date of September 30, 2021 and inserting in place thereof the
date of September 30. 2022 '

* B) Exhibit C — Payment Terms: Amend Exhibit C, third paragraph by striking the
current contract dates of “October 1, 2020 through September 30. 20217 and
inserting in place thereof “October 1, 2020 through September 30, 20227

C) Exhibit D: Amend period covered by this certification” 10 “October 1. 2020 to
September 30, 20227 ; ;

D) Exhibit E: Amend contract period dates o "'Cctnber 1, 2020 to Seplember 30,
2022 : ’

2. Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modificd by the Terms
and Conditions of this Amendment. obligations of the parties hereunder shall remain in full
force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement as 1

existed immediately prior 1o this Amendment.
CONTRACT AMENDMENT NH DCPT. OF ENERGY

SCS Amendment ) g . Contructor Injtipls: .
Gront: G-2101NHLIGA ‘ : Mate: 0_9; a7
: Page | o2
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first above
written.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Dn.szmenl u@crbv

arcd Chlcomc Interim Commissioner

Snulhweslem Community Services. [nc.

oy Brih Nanike )

(Beth Daniéls. Chicl Executive Officer)

State of __ NH
County of Q,hv?&h/\fﬂ

On this 81 _day of Sz peonpel L2021, before me, SOz h (et
the undersigned officer, personally appeared Beth Daniels who acknowledged himself/herself to be the
Chiel Executive Officer _ of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.. a corporation, and thal-he/she
heing authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes contained therein

IN WITNESS W Wy,
S W HFRFO?N&;«GW  my hand and official seal.
f oo B4 Jasa GMW

. E M” ; =ﬁo!ary Public/Iustice 0
' E g h asedd £ §My Commission expires: 1 3”°"‘f
%4"94_4 \# F3
Approved as to form, ex&e Qﬂ-’aﬁich:
. : : mnﬂ"‘" .
OFFICE OF THE I"IORNLY GENERAL
By:

Assistant Attorney General

Date: /aﬁ{/eou

I hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Councﬂ of the State of
New Hampshire at their meeting on ., 2021,

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By:

Title:

SCS Amendiment Contractor § Nitis: BD
_ Grant: G-210INHLIEA ‘Dase: é? w1/
CFUA: 93,568 uge 2 012



CERTIFICATE OF VOTES

(Corporate Authority)

I, Kevm Watterson " . Clerk/Sccretary of _Southwesiern Community Services Ine.
(Name) ) (Corporation name)
(Hereinafier the “Corporation™), a _New Hampshire COl‘pOl‘ailon hereby centitv that: (1) | am the duly
{State)

elected and acting Clerk/Secretary of the Corporation; (2) | maintain and have cusiody and am ‘familiar with the

minute books of the Corporation: (3) | am duly authorized 1o issue certificates with respect to the cantents of such
books; {4) that the Board of Dircctors of the Corporation have authorized, on Jung 18, 2021 , such authority

{Dxuey
to bc in force and effect until September 30, 022

(Conlncl termmmmn date) -

The person(s) holding the below listed position(s) arc authorized to execute and-deliver on behalfl of the
Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:-

Beth Daniels ‘ CEQ
{Name) (!{osilion)
{Name) (Position)

(5) The meeting of the Board of Dircctors was held in accordance with _ New [Hampshire
{Statc of incorporation}

law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said aulhonzauon has not been moditicd, amended or rescinded
and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand hs the Cleck/Secretary of the corporation this

27 day of September ,2021 . M " ) _ .

ClerIJSccrctary

STATEOF _tH -
COUNTY OF _ChvSn sy

Onthis &1 dayof _Se piembe” .20 21 . before me,

"+ the undersigned Officer, personally appesred Heum Wia f'-lfrvn who nanowlcdgcd hcrl}umsclf

lobethe _nomrd  Cihalr of il L , & corporation
and that sheshe as such o rd  Clygac being authorized 1o do so, e\ccutcd the forcgo:ng

instrument for the purposes thercin contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | here-unm set my hand and official seal.

Notary Public/Justiceof thePrace
Commission Expiration Date: 13 [ ¢f




State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1. Willizm M. Gardner. Sceretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby cenity that SOUTHWESTERN
COMMUNITY SERVICES. TNC. is a Now Hampshire Nonprolit Corporation registencd to transat business in Mew
Hampshirc on May 19, 1963, [ furthereatify that oll fees and ducuments required by the Seeretary of Stawre’s oflive have been

received and is in good standing as (ar as this aflice is concemed.

[usincss 112: 65514
Centiticate Numbcer: 0005339790

IN TESTIMONY WHERFEOQF,
[ herete set my hand und cause (o bé ;lllixcd
the Scal ol the Siate o New I'lumpsl;irc.

this Sth day ol Aprit ALD. 2021,
William M. Gardner

Seerelary of Siawe




| y ’ DATY (KMWDOYYYY)
ACORD’ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE o

THIS CERTIFICATE 19 ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER THIS -
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. :

[MPORTANT: If the cartificate holder Is 2an ADDITIONAL INSURED, tho policy(ies) must have ADDITIGNAL INSURED grovisions or be endorsed.
1f SUBROGATION 18 WAIVED. subject to the terms snd condillons of the policy, certain policles may require an endorsement. A atatement on
v cortificats does not confer rights to the cartficats holder In lleu of such endorsement(s).

FRODUCER CORTCT Ana O'Donnel, CPIW, CIC
Clark MOrenaon INSUrnGe e (803) 3522124 [k, woy, (003)357-8491
PO Box 800 N onigy: Podonnaligcian-monanson.com
. . " INIURERTS] AFFOROING COVERAGE MAKC 8

Keena NH 0421 wsumERa: Philadcipiia indemalty insurance Co. 16058
WNSURED wsumene: Maine Employens Mut ins Co w 11148

Souihwesiem Comm Senvices InC WEURERC ! )

PO Box 803 Rp——

i MIURER E :

Keeno . NH 0M24 J—
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 2422 Master . REVISION NUMBER:

THIS 1S TO CERTIFT THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWATHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDATION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDEC BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN (S SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REQUCED 8Y PAID CLAIMS. ;

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE N :an“ POLICY NUMBER ] [m: {MDDYYYY) Loty
¢ COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE 4 1.000.000
3 MO 1O RENTED
~Jcumswoe 29 ocem - | Prevrdes i€a conmpron |8 100000
] . 5 MED EXP (Any 004 camon) j> 5000
A PHPKZ0 1838 001302021 | 08072072 | g asoriaL & 4DV INJURY s 1,000,000
GEN, AGGAEGATE LIMT APOLIES PER, : CENERAL ACGRIOATE §_2/000.000
sovey 2% [Jwx PRODUCTS - COMPCPAQD | 3 2.000,000
OTHER: * . s T
TOMBINED SINGLE LT
AUTOMOBRE UABILITY . (£ acoogen s 1.000.000
_E ANY AUTO " | BOOILY. IRIURY (Par puraon) $
| OWNED: SCHEDULED -
A || STos oy Tee PHPK2291841 . 087302021 | 08/30/2022 | BOOILY INJURY (Per accicent) | §
£ HON-GWNED : 1 :
| aurosomy . AUTOS LY ; | {Pyr poriopni)
$
5 UMBRELLA LIAB E oecun : EA=H OCCURRENCE s 2.000,000
A EXCESS UAD LA MADE PHUBT73040 06r30:2021 | 08302022 | accnecate ¢ 2.000,000
veo | XX neresmon s © s
WORKERS COMPENSATION ] g3
AND EMPLOVERS' LABRITY _— ESkAMEEE ——
B e ey T "ia 3102600786 | oarir202: | 012022 |ElaSACHACCIOENT Pt
{Mandstory INNH £.1, DUSEASE - EA EMPLOYEE |3 500000
gFI. GeAriDE Lt - 500,000
SCAIFTION OF OPERAT'ONS betow €L DiSEASE. POUCY um |3 SV

CRACTEPTION OF DPERATIONS ¢ LOCATIONS ) VEMICLER [ACORD 101, Addiional Remerhs Schuduls, may he sttuched ¥ e shece ks rensdred]

as Stale- NH
AN officars inchuded for coverape

CERYIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION i *

SHKOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREQF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

Stato of NH_ Depertment of Energy ACCPRDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

24 §, Frutt SL Ste 10
AUTHORZED REPRESENTATIVE

o | M 7_\/1;17 o b Lo

. © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION, All rights rosorved.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE l‘{
OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
107 Pleasant Strect, Johnson Hall
.Concord, NH 03301-3834

, Telephone: (603) 271-2155 DIVISION OF PLANNING
CHRISTOPHER T. SUNUNY Fax: (603) 271-2615 DIvISiON OF ENERCY
GOVERNOR - www.nh.gov/osi

March 8, 2021

Q%Pg{OVCED BY GOVERNOR
; UNCIL ON: . 3/24/2021
|

and the Honorable Counci AGENDA ITEM: #45

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 ) PO#107644.0

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununuy,

REOUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Office of Strategic Initiatives {OSI) to amend the SOLE SOURCE Contract Agreement
(Contract # 1076440) with Southwestern Community Services, Inc., (VC #177511), Keene, NH, by increasing
the contract amount by $1,218,800.00 from $3,221,04) .00 to $4,439,841.00 for the Fuel Assistance Program
(FAP), effective upon approval of Governor and Executive Council, through September 30, 2021. This contract
was originally approved by Governor and Executive Council on September 23, 2020, Item #46. 100% Feders!

Funds.

Office of Strategic Initiatives, Fuel Assistance EY 2021
01-02-02-024010-77050000
074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief ; . 1,218,800.00
EXPLANATION

This contract amendment is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action
Agencies (CAAs) with the New Hamipshire Fuel Assistance Program.

The additional amount requested in this contract amendment represents (the CAAs) share of Federal LIHEAP
funding expected for PY 2021. This OSI contract amendment will provide the Community Action Agency with
program funds to support eligible New Hampshire residents, especially the working poor, elderly and disabled
citizens who are in need of assistance to help pay for heating costs this winter season. .

The Fuel Assistance Program (FAP) is a federally funded statewide program that makes home energy more '
affordable for income-qualified families, disabled and clderly residents of New Hampshire. Program funds are
targeted to tow income households with high energy burdens. Federal law ¢stablishes maximum income
guidelines. OS{ subcontrects to the five CAAs who are responsible for providing FAP services at the local level.

In the event Federal Funds are not available, General Funds will not be requested lc; support this program. '

Respectiully submitted,

Jared Chicoine
Director -
JClade

G&C 240
TDD Access: Reiay NH 1-800-735-2964



{OFFICEOF STRATEGICINITIATIVES,

SU BJECT ‘FUEL: ASSIST" NCE: CONTRA 94
SOUTHWESTERN . COMMURITY, SERVICES; INC:-

AMENDMENT

Ttus Amcndmcntr"dgtod'l'éyma:y 12, 5 2 is: bctwccn th Staté’of New:H
Smtcguc’lmuatwes,ql()? P!asmLStreet, (nncord Memmack Co' ‘ry,r.NH 0 ¢ :
io ay, the™State?)and’ South&stcm Comrnumly Scmccs lm. 63 Co{-nrnumly Wny, P‘G Box4603
Kcene.ﬁChc;,hlrc.C‘ oi.mry, NH H383 ('h:rcmnﬂcr Fefered 153s: lhc “Contrm;lo?')

n{npsbug:. Oﬂ'ﬂ:c of

PUSyaRLLo; an Agrtcmcnt’(hcrcmaﬂcr refefrtd” to AGHRE Agreemcn! my; C"'rigract_Numbcr"
1076440“as appmvcd by Governor:and’ ‘Councilon: Seplcmbcr 23: 72020 (Ilcm #46); lbc.Cunl:m.tor hus-
nbl‘l:'cd lo prowdc ‘centa imrlccs. per thc terms: and condmons spec:f' cd m«the ‘Agﬁecment*and in:
cons:dr_muoufof-paymcm by: hé State- ol Cerainsums as: spccuﬁcd’thcrcm

AL

WHEREAS; Puant 1o (e provisionsior. Section 17 oL, \BCAR (el thc'Agtecment Yy be
modified-or’ mcndcdtonly‘by a writteri: mwumcnt-cxccutcd by the: pan:r.s thereto: nnd-only:aﬂun

ipproval:of Such modlﬁt:anon or dng admient:by the' Governor s ‘ind: Counul and
WHER BAS, TSt ind.the: Coiitriktar havie ligretdoaricndithie ABREMeTiRceruin
NOW 'IHERFFORF ih;cdonsideratinmothe’ forq,nmg und'nf the mvmmti?nd Rditions i
the:Agreementas; scl 1orth hcn:m “the:partivs.agreeito the loilowmg

A "Amendmcnl and Modnﬁcatcon o Agrecment The: Agrccmcni n umcndcd ind- mud:ﬁud us

folidws:
A)Rrige: ‘nm' atign;-Nmcnd: Subparagmph |80 thEARreEn SEiking Ui
Gurre gum of $392%1041-00.ahd” inscing: in plactithéreof the 1oiaksum-of
54 439 341;

B), it.C = Payment lerms; Amend Exfiibit €. ﬁm«pnmgmph b, sn,nkmg the.
currcnl s[un-ol' $3,22l 0410007 ms;rung in plum. lhcrwl:thf. AOLkSUm.OF
54, 439'84[ 00;

Amend Exh:b:t‘C second:paragraph:by. saiking: the:current:sum. oﬁ$262 350:00
-and msc.mng 526? 150: 00 fot: adrmmstrauvc cOsts.,

Amcnd ExhzbnaC ,secand:pasagriph. by stnlung 86, currcatsuy; of $2:784; i650:00.
‘and. mscrtmngB 998.650:00:for progeam- -¢osts.

2. Codtinuancelof: Agrccmmt Except.asispecifically; ‘aniended: and todificd; by dlic 1crms
und Condsmnscf thn. Amcndment obbganons-of thc pamcs hercundcr,shall rcmmn-m full- -

-----

_ cxlslcd lmrncmatciy pnortto thls Amcndﬁ;cm

‘CONTRACT AMENDMENT QFEICEQPJT ATEGIEINITIATIVES
SCSAmcndurn'l Coritraor 181315 B .4 S, :
i D:u: : JMle i .

CFOA: 93568 " Tgeions



IN WITNESS! WI'I.ERLOI' thc :parties-have hereunito sel their hand: us:0THhé day and- ycar Tirst-dbovie
written,

On'this “g sy of. . Fe. 0L

the undersigned: oﬂ"lcct.. pcrsonally appcarcd N
acknowlcdgcd h:msclffhcrsclf to.betie . (Zn . - Sotithwes T
ServiccsIné’; 8. corpomuon.. and thiar hdshc bcmg‘aurhonzx:d so.to do cxccutcd ithe? forq,omg
ihslrument for the purjposes.contdined:thercin:

IN WIENESS, WHEREQF, I:hercunié sct-fiy: hand:and official séal. s “‘“‘i‘,"’_',‘.i"%

Approved as:toform, ‘exetiGob. and substunce: % A A
QIFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

By:
~~ Assistant. Attomcy Gencral

Daic! / g[ 202

I hcrcby ccmty lhal th;'lom;,ouag conLract was upf mvcd by the! Gcwcrnor ang Cou.ncnl of l.hc Sl.alc of
New:Hampshire &t théirmeeting’on:

5CS AMendmdi
Gmn.l G-210|NHLII-‘J\
DA




State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, Willizm M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the Stote of New Hampshire, do hereby centify that SOUTHWESTERN

COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. is e Nesw Hampshire Nonprofit Corporalion registered to transact business in New

Hompshire on May 19, 1965. 1 further cenify that sl (ces and documents required by the Secretory of State’s office have been
: 1

reccived and is in good standing es far a3 this office is concerned.

Business [D: 65514
Centificate Number: 0005232985

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

N hereto sct my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire, '
this Z1st day of fanuary A.D. 2021.

Willizm M, Gardner

Secrewnry of Stote



r " ' | CERTIFICATEOFAUTHORIY ™~ 7 7 m]

13 Y

1. :Kgvin! ﬂgt.l_;.f‘()n B, B , SAcek/Secrctary st QOmhwc tern: :'ﬂ[nl‘nl.l ity Ser
ﬂ\nmc) . poTRl
tHerdinafterithe' “Cmpommn"} o Ncw Haimpshire »ébmo’i'bfibn""hcféﬁy c‘c‘fxiﬁ-‘
(Stm) .
clcu.cd ond’ mclmg Clcrleccr" iryiorhe, (‘orpornnon {2 Hgmnmm and"hnvc‘clmody A am“fnmltmr K vithic
|.1mutc‘book1 of the. (.orporauan (35’] anm dmy euthorized to:issuc ccrtifi catcs-wlih rqé'p_cct‘to thc:cqnu:n S0 S0

books; (4)nh:ll lhc Bonn:l of D1r0ctors ol' ithe: (.crpm'auon‘havcmulhonmd n gmpm ; \mch .wthgm'
"’nume;,

SRS Re duly

y be.in: force :md e_f_fect unﬂI-S_mjgm_bgf_lO, le

quntrm termirumn diic),

"nd to.cxcn.uic'nnu dilivite: on‘b;hall’-nr Lhc.
G orpomucn :ny comrnct'ér.gther msu'hmcnt for lhc qnle.of pfoducts and-senmua

.!ghn_A_anmg i GED:. S —
{(Nomey, © 7 - 77 ' - 7" nsiton), :
(Nﬁng). ' ’ n '(Pc&ui.‘m)‘, o -

(J) Thc mcchng of.thc Bcru’tl of D:mclors was; hcld m accordancc w:th Ma
ISulu.-.ol' mcuni;ntmn)

faw-and: thc by Iaws of the: (‘ orpnranon -anid (6) wd nuthonzzuon has:not: becn modnf cd 'nmendal orfesy. ivded

and. wnl.mucs int I'ull I'uru. m!d cfful us of tht. dalc. hcrcol'

{6). l»hmbykuudmtand that. lhe‘Stnt: of:New H: mpshne mll felyioni this’ ccmlu.mc % evi Cl'lCCilh"l' thuju.lsnnul
listed-above: currmllyoocupy‘ thc-Poémon(t.).mdlcatcd and:ihat; theyt havc full; anthonry‘to “bind; thc corpm.s 1004
dicrexieat Lhal lhcn: Jucidny {imits‘on:the: anl.honty of any:| lisicd’ mdmdunl to:bind-the: corporahon_;..n cnnlr fets

withthe SaTe:6f Now: Hanijshircall such:limittionsre cxpmsly stoicd harein;

Jas te Ao

IN'WTNESS. W"U:REOF'T%thL hereunioscl:my- hand sy ihe; ClcrUSccrt:tary -&f. !.hl. corpomlmn 1his
16 duyol Cebivary. 202!

Clork/Seerciny’



ACORD'
, 4 CERTIFICATE OF LIA

DATE [RMOOTYYT)

BILITY INSURANCE oo

THIS CERTFICA
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFI
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE OOE
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE KOLDER.

AMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND,

YE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY
8 NOT CONSTITUTE

AND CONFERS KO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTFICATE ROLDER TH!S
EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY TME POLICIES
A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIIED

IMPORVANT: H tho canificate holdor Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the
 the tanms and conditlons of the policy, cortsin

poticiss may require an sndomement. A statement on

palicy(les) must be ondorssd. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
this centficale does not confer rights to the

. cerificate hotder In Geu of such endoresmaent(s).

#RODUCLA CORTACT .
Clark - Mortanson (nsurance AASE: i .
P.0, Box 608 (2o £ 803-052:2121 [Ta% ;o 003-3578481 |
Keans NH 0N ,ﬁ“. esr24admingBclark-monenson.com .
WBURE R{3} AFFORDMHO COvVEAAQE L&)
prauaen A ; Phitadeiphia Ingyrance Comparny
OURSD SOUTHWE STERNCOM . Maine £ Mutusl insurance Co.
Southwostam Cemmunity Services Inc | myumzn p ; Maing Employer Buis R
PO Box 803 mymeng:
Keens NH 03431 SYRERO:
| MBURERE : !
p SURER # .
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1286829394 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS LS TO CERTIFY THAT THE
INDICATED. MOTWITHSTANDI

CERTIFICATE MAY BE 1SSUED OR MAY PERTAIN,

THE INSURANCE AFFORDEO 8Y
EXCLUSIONS AXKD CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN

ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
ARESPECT TO WHICH THIS
THE POLICIES DESCRIBED WEREIN 15 SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
REDUGED BY PAID CLAIMS.

e YYPE OF BHIURANCE ¢ wen] POLICY KUMBER T m LpcTh
A | X | cOMMERCIAL QENERAL UARUTY PHAQ TS - N0 4%0ran EACM OCCURRENCE § 1,000,000
MYRIORE YO RERTED 7
CLANS-MADE @ oceuR | PAEMTSES {Ea cocurpnggn [ 8100,000
] MED EXP {Any one person) § 5,000
= PERSONAL 6 ADV INAURY | 8100000
GEM AGOAEGATE LT APPUES PER: GENERAL AGOREGATE 3,000,000
_—_{MD% DLOC PRODUCTS - COMPYOP ADQ | § 2,000,000
onen,_ i
* | AUTONOGLE UABLITY PRI 1 ATRS 1 w0 | e WEWWWIIE e D
%} sowr suro : QOOMY UL {Per panory | 4
o :bgg;‘"“ m"‘“‘; \ BOOILY.(MAJRY (Per sccitent) | §
[ X | argoausron AUTOS  iPer pcoes) !
] s
A | X |usornuauss | X | ocomn PHUTITA? V200 XTI | gacH OCCURREMCE § 2,000,000
€1CT89 LAD.: CLAIMS MADE AGGREGATE §2,000,000
pro ] X imercmons oo . - _ls
o [voRachS CoRPpaATON N Jrczecores N v | X | eregute | 1
ANT PROPREETORPAR TWEREXECYTIVE E.L, EACH ACCIDENT # 600,000
OFFICEAAILMBER EXCLUDED? HiA e ——
{Manatory n WH) €. OISEASE - EA EMPLOYEH § 500.00
o [ A d
DS ATSTigH OF OPERATIONS betow £ DISEASE - POUCY LT | $000,000
e SR ThOw OF OFERATIONS / LOCATIOND | VEXICLES [ACORD 141, A Ramests Scheoule. may be ¢ ¥ wore spasa Lt required)
Workers ton taws epply for the slato of. NH
Al Officers ar¢ Included
J
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY DF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
. ) TME EXPIRATION DATE THEREQF, MOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
State of New Hampshire ACCORDANCE WATH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
Office of Slrlatoglc Initiatives o
Johnson Hall
107 Pleasant Street SLiiaAEED REPRLSCHTA VA
Concord NH 03301-8501 M
1

ACORD 25 {2014/01)

© 1988.2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reservod.

The ACORD.name and logo are rogistercd marks of ACORD



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE . ,_{ (ﬂ ¥
OFFRICE OF STRATEGIC INIT1aTIPRS 2 2 20 110:47 DAS
107 Pleasam Sirect, Johnson Hall )

Contord, NH 03101-3834 ' >
CumssTOmmA T SuNnt © Telephone: (603) 271-2155 ' Dl;::,f;?:“o:; é:::::c
gt Fox: (603) 271-261$ www.nh.govfosi
9,2020 APPROVED BY GOVERNOR
Sepiember 9, & COUNCIL ON: '09/23/2020
AGENDA ITEM: #46
PO#1076440

His Excetlency, Governor Christopher T, Sununu
and ‘the Honarable Council

Staic House t

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1} Autherize the Office of Strategic nitistives (OS1) 10 enter into 8 SOLE SOURCE contract with Southwestern
Community Services, Inc., (VC #17751 1), Keene, NH, in the amoun! of $3,221,041.00 for the Fuel Assisiance
Progrom cfTective Oclober |, 2020 through September 30, 2021, upon approval of Governor and Execulive
Council. 100% Federal Funds. ' ;

f‘:unds (o support this request are anticipated 10 be available in the following account in FY 2021 upon
the availability and continued apprepriation of funds in the future operaling budgel.

. Office of Strategic Initiatives, Fuel Assisiance . Py 2021 .
01-02-02-024010-770¢50000 o
074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist& Relicl $3,221,041.00
2) TFunther request authorization to advance Southivestern Community Services, Inc. $311,259.00 from the

above-referenced contract amount.’ :

. : EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE Lased on the historical performance of the Comnunity Action Agencics (CAA)
in the New Hampshire Fuel Assistence Program (FAP), their outreach and client service capabilities, (he
syncrgics thal beaefit the FAP os a resub of the Five sistewide CAAs® implementation of scveral other federal
assistance programs, and the infrastructure 1hat is already in place 10 deliver FAP services. OSI proposes (o
continue 10 subcontract with the five CAAs who have successfully provided FAP services at the local level for
more than three decades. The CAAs work closely with the OS) FAP Administrator in the implementation of the

program.

FAP is n statewide program, fimded by a Federal Low Income Home Energy Assisiance Progeam {LIHEAP)
Block Grant, ond works 10 make home energy more affordable for income-quulified New Hampshire fomilies,
including those who ore clderly or disabled. Program funds are targered 1o low income households wirh high
energy burdens. The curren maximum income level is 60% of the Staie Medinn lncome (SMI), which is
$69,686.00 for a family of four. ‘The average FAP benefit during the bast program year was $890.00.

The LIHEAP program opernics on an October |, 2020 10 Sepreimber 30, 2021 program year, but wi ihis rime
Congress has not finalized approprintions for the Federal fiscal year 2021, Therelore. the contrnet amouns for

TIDD Acccss: Relay NH 1-500-735-2964 SeC.onmue



Mis Bxeethoney, Governur Chrsiapher I, Suaudu
3 the Hnnontle Council

Sepecmber 9, 2020

Ihge20l2

B -2
each of the Communily Action Agencies is based upon 0S1's besi estimate of anlicif:atcd federal funding,
including carryover funds from the prior program year. No funds will be obligated under this contract unless
federal monics are available to be expended. The proposed advance of funds will ensble the CAAs 10 operste the
program belween monthly reimbursements from the Stale. ‘

In the event that the Federsl Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested 1o suppon
this program. ’

Respectfully submitted,

1
Jared Chicoine

Direcior

| JCIEPS

Enclosures

5 GLC 0972312010



rzdm:nbuﬁaa P-37 (version 12411/2019)

m “This agreement ind shélis ltud\.mcnu shall become publ:t upon Submizsion to Govtnior angd
. Executive Condncli fof spproval; Ahy informaiion (hai &s'privats, wnﬁdenual or propnqw'y muit
bc ckaﬂy ideniificd.to the agency- and ngm:d 100 wmmg peioro: tigning the contrett:,

AGltEEMC.NT

Thie Sute of New Hampshire and the Contractor heréby mutusity sgree as'follows:
CENFERAL PROVISIONS.
1. IOENTIFICATION.
1.1 Stalc AgencyNume' 1:2, State, A;ency Addresi
Oﬂ‘-ce of Shugxé.tnlubvu 107, Picasant Stiver, -Sohnson Hall
Concord, New.Hampsbice 03301
T3 Cootactor Nese: o T4 Comrscidy Addrem N - D
So_l.nh}wqmijl_.canmmiily Scrvites, Inc.. 63 Compunity’ Wny. PO Dox 603, Kednc, NH 0343y 1
13- Cgniractot. Phops, 16, Aczonct Nambar- "7 17 Compltion Date [ T8, Price Urimtion.
! Nuriber | o1 -oun-nmm-nosoboo September-10; ml $3,221,041:00
(6037)52-7152 074-500587 fB21A |
)
1.9 Canlricunhﬂmccr Tor.Suate. t\;cncy o 110 Smc. A.;ency T_el:phqgi_g_Numbcr
Cilcen’ Sm:;lowika Fuel Asiistance Program. Adminisiretor (663) 291:2153;
1. Conmor Su;mmre ) ™ I, ll Namcmd “Tiite of. Contractor. Sugnubry,
: . John Mmjlwg. CEO
.m Mm ouge 41/
37 2 1.14_Nam¢ nd 1100 of Staie Agency Signatgry,

tYy

WEN
o te: ‘7/7/2030 Teced. Cluc.ome. Divectin

1 I/ Apppov:l by'thc ) H ‘Dcpmmcm -of Adm[msmlm Division, of Pusoqnd a app!lcab!c)
'Oiff. Diregtoe, ‘O

 Pagelofd )
. Conrgeior Initiols _
| - bate ~a3Ji0



3. SERVICES: TO RE PERFORMED. The Sute of New
Hampshire, gciing trodgh. e dgeey ideMificd in block il
("Siate"),  Chgeg  conupeclar idenaified in block 1.3
* (+Coniraétor™) to perfori, 8 the Coatacior shall perform, the
work or sple.of goods, o bot, identificd and more pérticilarly
descriticd: in, tie hitached EXH(BIT-D which <3 Jincorprdled
herein by reféfencs (“Stpces”). )

3. BFFECTIVE DATECO PLETION OF SERVICES,

3.1, H§tslihtiapdifg 6py ‘provision of 1bis Agreemedt’ (0 he
coritrery, and fibjest 19 the approvel of. the. Governor and,
Excchitve Codreil 6(me Suedl NewHampdhiss, if opplicable,
ihis AgftémEng gnd sll otigations ofiho porties hereunder, $hall
become glfétlive ga the Yotd the., Govemor and ‘Txéelitive
Countil spprote this . Agrecrmenic as indicated in bigek 1,17,
wniless Ao fwchapprovel is required, I which casc the. A gécinent
shill betome elective on-ihe date the Agreercay is signéd by
Uic Statt Agericy a3 thown inblock I3 (-"Eﬂ'edivi:.Da‘l'e"’).

3.3 If dche- Gofuactpr” gommences, the $erviced 1pror 10 e
 Mectiv Date, bl Services performed by the Contraciér pror (&
(e (Effective. De shall be -performed- s1.ive sole fisk of the
Copyigtin; snd imthe cvent ihpi ihis Agreemenitfoes aot become
cfiective, the Stic: shali :have mo jability 1o tic Caritragtor,
ingiyding withddt limidition, any objigatitn o piy the

Cohtrictpr for fany cous inqurred ¢ Services. performed.

X fdttaciar must complee,all Seivices by the Completion Date-

specifiedin lock 1.1,

¢, CONPITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT,
Notwithmanding, eny provisich gf .his Agregment io the

contry; ell. obligationd af* thé -State. Nereunder,' including.-

without limitstion, the cantinuaite of phymients hereunder, are
contingeni upon cheisyailgbitioy afd convihued _nppropdaiioc,v.of-
Tunds ‘efecicd by eny. sidie of Tcdérsl tegistative. or exceulive:
saion (hat: reduces; climifiites ot otherwise modifies U
-appropristion or availabjlity of fyriding ToF his Agrecment:and
ine ScopeiforServices §rovided i, EXHIBIT B in-whole o in
‘part .In no. cvenl. shill Whe S be {isble for any paymenis

underin cmux-til’.ﬁ'gh‘M_ilyblp'tpompﬁued-f\'mda In-thé
.eveni ¥, 0. reduction of reriifation .of appropristed funds; the
Sisia shaliihava the- gL (4. Yjthligig_paymentuntil such. funds
Became 6vailiBic; if- £vEd; lond.sheli have the right 10-duce of
termihage ihig §ervices under this Agreemen.immedisicly upod

giving the:Gontyctor notice of such reduction of iérminatigh:

The-Siae sRalI-Dot be.required to i Gor fand frbmany Uk

accounl b7 fource ig e Account ‘identificd In Blogk. 1.6 Ih the
evcht fuiidi inthat Atcount are reduced or Ganvailabile.

5. CONTRACT PRIGCEPRICE LIM ITATION!
PAYMENT. -

5.1 TNk Contrverphise, meinod-ofpryment, and temms of payment
gre iggatificd. ond more poarseularly described in EXHIBIT €
whichi it incorporated harein by reference. ;

5.2 THc payingnt-by the Sule of the contract pirice shall bg the
enly ang_[he complefe ceimbursement 1o the Contractor for all
éxpenes, of whateves asluse incarred by the Contraator in the
perfopmancs ‘hercol. snd shall be the only ond the compléte

-,I’géc 20f4

compensation (0 the Conbractor for the Services, The.State shall

. have 66 Yabilily 19/the Contractor. giher than: the conuract price.

6.3 The State resenves Lhe righi io offies, fom any amounis’
othchv:sc payable'to the Contrattor ndet ihis -Agregnent ‘thase:
ligdidated smounts required perfiintéd by N.H, RSA 803
diroygh RSA 8074 orany olhes provisionoflaww,

§:4 Notwithstanding any provision in (his Agreement to the
cgitrary, and orwithsanding unexpecied citcumstances, in 0o
gvi,nl-shlll-(he.loixi of all paymenus authorired, or ectially made
herguhder;excecd the Price- Limitstion set forth inblock [

6. COMBLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND RECULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OFPORTUNITY.
¢t In connection -with the périgmieice, of the Services, the
Cantracior shall ¢omely SR dll, spplicable satutes, laws,
regulaiions, and -orders of ederal, state, couniy or enunicips!
sythgnities which 'imposé .any obligation gr duty upon e
Contractor; including, but noy limited w, civil rights-and equal
Emplomcqi-uaponun]ty taws, In addition, if this Awmcm_i.\
funded in any-pant by monies of the Uhitcd-States, the Contractor
shall-comply with:stlfederfsl exequlive orders,rukcs; regulations,
and-statutes, and with a.n‘y.rrl_b:-. fegutations and gutdelines as:thg
Staic, or the Uhited States lssie (o imptement these-regulations.
The Contracior shall 150 cgmply with all-appliceble inteliéciunl
propesty laws.. ., y
6.2 Duringthé torh:af this: Agreemen, the Contractor. shall et
discrimanate apdiny edployees ar applicants foc emgloyent
becxuse bf ivce, Eoldr, iedigion; ereed, age, 3%, handicap, $6¥Usl
rientatidh,.of nytigrsl origiy end will ake affirmative HTHA AT
prevent sychdifinmination.

puClr 4greey 10 permit the Swptt of Unitéd States
o e Contricior's books, recdrds tnd segounty (ar
tht puriiase of dscermaining compliance with witrulcs, reguisiions
afd -Graky, ahd the covenants, lasms ang conditions of thiy -

AGeESAL.

1. PERSONNEL., .. '
7.1 The:Conmractar shall alits-own.cxpenseprovide ol persnnel
géceashry'to-peiformiihe Services. Tht Cotrictor warmmpts that
&) gerbninel engaged in--the Serviocs shall, be qualidicd 1o
peflofin the Cervices, and shill BE propérly licensed -and

, “otherwise culhorized 10 do:s6 under- 11 applicable Taws.

7.4 Unless:oerwise fdiliorized if wling. during-ihe term oF:

-this Agrecnent, end {of-a: petiod of six (6): months after (h:

Completivn Dite:in Blogk 117, the Contrscior shall.net hire, and’
shall. not: permit, ey sibconifactor of other -person, Tirm oi
‘corporstion with whom. it is éngaged in » combined elfont 0]
perfornrihe Services o hire, say person who is 1.Swte cmployee

.or officiat, who,is Materially Anvalved in the procurement,

adminisiration or performance, ‘of this Agreement.  This
ravision shell survive tedmingtion.of this Agrecment.

3 The Contfacting OfMede gpecificd.inblock 1.9, or his of hed
successor, shall bg the-Siate’s reprosealative, Inthe-event of any
dispute conceifing (he interpreistion of this Agreemient, the
Contracling. Officer's decision shatl be finat for the State.

Coniractor Iniin)
Dale 1s



8. EVENT OFf DEPAULT/REMEDIES. -

8.1 Atiy-gne.or morc of the following #c1s. or. pihigsions-of the
Conyrpeior shall eonsiitute an.cverit of-défaul] hereunder(Event
of Oefoult™);

.11 “fuiture; to' perform the Scr\'nw satipfoctprily or on.

schedule; .

8,122 (oiture 10, submit-ahy.feport fequired hereunder; andor
£.1.) (uihere 1o parforii’dhy other €ovenant, term of condilion.of.
this Agreement: ‘ :

8.3 Upon the:occurrence @Leny Eventof G louli, the Smte may
take eny one, oc more;.or 31, of the-fallowihg aglions;

8,31 ‘give the Cantracionpwritied nélickspecifying the Event of
DEfaolt and.requiring it 10.be romedisd withinin ific tbience of
3 presicror kesscr spezifieation.of (g, thirty £36) diys Trom.the

dato of thie notice; end ifU'Even1 o Defauliisnottimély cured,

" erminate this Agreemérly, efTective two'(1) deysefter giving-ihe

Contracior:notice 611 Mingldn;

1.2.2'giveithc:Conthicto? o wrinien'notice specilylngheEvent of
Oefault and sugpthding 41l payments (o be made under this
Agreement: ond. orderiig thet the portionof the:contraci price
which: would' -giherwise ascroe ‘1o’ Oiq-.éonhc_lnq during the
period from.the date oF $uCH dgtice antil guch fime as the-Suile

Bctermines Uiat the- Cotrecsar hias: cured. the Everit-of. Default:

thallnever bepdid 16/1h¢ Contractor;, -

.21 ;iw:_-uié Cofiingtor 8.wrigten noticespecifyin the Bventof
‘Diefmily arid $=1, GT*HEaiNST sy other obligations the Sipte &gy
owe 1o WiE:QbALeldr shy'damagesthe Staie,s4f¥ers by ieajon of
dny EvénLof Delauly; gnd/or -

$.2:4 give the.Contrictor.a"writien notice. specifying Wie.Evenlof
Deficlt, ‘titar Uiy Agreement: a3 breachtd, tefininste <he

Agreemény iﬁﬁ:qghy¢qﬁiﬂoﬁib‘rcpwdks ai Yaw of ih 4uity, o

823, Ny itk 4y theSuéaoienforce any-provisions, hei€olinfgr

-mr_gig:,',:l-ﬁ(_-mg.yk:;mll.Be'.deanad o-waiver of.ils. fights With

regird. to Wiy Event'of Detault, or eny subsequeny Edent of
Defpyli Noéxpress-faitureto eoforce eny Event of Defpyitshall
be dgpgﬂ"g-@wo’l.the-ﬁ;!ﬂ ofhe Swig tdenfonce cath and
oit 'Of the: provisions.herecfwpeni-eny fuhthes or gther Event of
Dcfaultion'the pant ofithe Contracior.,

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Nptwithstanding' paraghfhi -8, e, Stake ‘may, 8l its solc
discretion, ierminate‘the A preeinichl.(or/gny reason in wholc or
in pan, by (Rirty'(ID) days: wiinles nptite t& the Contrucior that.
the SmtoisexercitingTIs gptivh 1) tpminate the. Agreement.

5.7 In the event of gh €Ay \¢ntiliation:oft this: Agreemant (0%
sny resson olher this, the. «completion of the ‘Services; the
Contracior -thell, of hé, Suie's discretion, deliver to the
Contreciing Officer. ol 1gt€r, in fifleen {155 days after the dote
ol*termination, ® epon (" Terhinption feport”) descriving in
detaid-all Senvices perforingd; End 'ty gontractiprice eamed, 16
and,including:the 481§ 3F feiiination. The (orm, subject:manzr,
content, and numbgs bT cofiies bf the Termingtion: Report sholl
§¢ ideniveal.to those of any Finfi Report described in theatiached
EXHUBIT 8 in eddition, a{the Staje s diseretion, i Contracior
shall, withis 1.5 dayd bl aoticc o carly-termination, devclop and

fubmit to the Sile o Fransiton Plen for sefvices under, the-
Agreeroeni, '

a0, Dnm\cgss'sfggy'ﬂpzﬂﬁutw.t

. PRESERVATION!

10.1 Asyised in iih Agregment, the word*idata” shalt miésn all,
iAformition ind hings developed-or obtained Surlhg e, )
pérfGrmance of; or.cquired or developed by réason of;-this

Agreermcny; inchuding; but:aon limited o, all iyilicy Yepors,

flés; fortriuise, surveys. maps, chart, §ound Rtordings, video -
recordings; pictorisl reproduciions, driwings, anilyses; graatiic
representations; cgmpuia_pmyum.i. COMpULr Prifiouts, notes,
Ictiers, mémgraada, papeis, wnd documents, all-wheth®r
finished or unfinifhed..

10.2 Agsth 87d sy property which.has beed réctived:from
W Sulie‘or putchased wilh funds provided fof that pirpose
ubder'this Agreement; slislibethe ‘propegty-of theState, and
shajl b¢ retumed 1o the'Stite upon démihd br updh tprvminalion.
of this Agreement.for any.reason: .
10.3°Canlidentinliry ol -datn chall hEgovemed by N;H, RSA
chepter 91-Asor other-cxisling Jiw. Dilcloduré of:data requires
prige whinen epprovel of the Siate.

11: CONTRACTOR'S'RELATION.TO THE STATE. Inthe,
p’;rfgn'p_n‘pce.of"this,»_\grecmeni ihe Congagtor is'in sll.respecs

‘an independent coniracior, ¥nd i feithér an agent’ nor an

employce-of the.Sutte. Ngithér 1.-Conyactor nor eny of is
officers; :employces, :agent3 '6f imemtdrs thall hawe.authoriry (o

‘bind the Stlc-orredtive-aly benelits, workers® campensation af

other ersohuments, grovided by the Staic:to its.employees.

13- ASSICRMENT/DELEGATIONAYBCORTRACTS:
42.1 The Conirncior, sholt ey 'Wsigh, or otherwide aunsier ariy

.jnmt:iﬁ’this:u\mtnt-ﬂiﬁd@],@&fﬂtjﬁr;wiﬁm notice,-wii‘.h

$hall'be provided-io ¢ Sthre &f leastififeen 1§} days, prior to
the'assignment, dnd o SFiften Gotigen of-ihic Staie: For purpedel
of (iis pirdgreph, 8. Change. of. Contiol ‘shall constine:
wsignmedt.  “Chaiige of Conuol™ means (s) mirger,
consolidarion, ¢r;8 gensyctionor scrics of reldied trinfacriony in’
wehiich  Jind.‘party; Sogcther wilh Ais: affilisccs, becdmed e
direkt of: iwdjrcct-awner of fifty poreent: (S0%) or, indre ‘of the
voling, shares Gr.imiley equity inierests, or-combingd volipg
powii 8l e Gontietar; or (B)ithe silc:of elliof JobMentinlly aIF
-of thé a5sits:6(the Conbracidr.. ' s :

r2.2 NEng gl the Services stisll be Subcopiupsitd by e
Eontriidir without prior writian' nalicé ind cdnsent o Uie:State.
The-State is enticled 10 copica:of, -l fubicopieess gnd nssigameni
sgrecmentsiang shell-not’be bouad by:eny provigions:conipined
ifi'é sidiconupet o an mi;mncni-m_tje}hm'r_:q wwhich i1 i3 notis
perty.

15, INDEMNIFICATION. Uleds Gierwise cxempted by law,
thi¢ Contraciorshall indernnify: nd Koid lidihiess e State, its
ofiery and. employecs,. from sad/igsinst;dny &nd ol) claimg;
iabiliiié< nnd costs for any pECEAa Injiry or property-6ameges,
patent pr copyrightiinfringemedt Grouver ¢lpims esterted againgt
the.Seaie, iis ofMcer orenipldyess, which anise oul of (or which
may B clained 10 srisé- quy gf) the wciy or omission of the
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Conpsttor; of subcontractors, ‘mighiging but not. Timited 10; the
hggligence; reckicss o inteAtiona) €ondyet. Thie Siate shall-not
o inoie for anycasts incurred b0 CRrgictor, wising.under

;hi_sp_qr:-f.l;gph 13 Notwilhauahdifig e forcgoings nothing herein.

coniained shallbe deemed (0. cofdnitute o waiver of-the sovercign
jiimunity oFihe:Swe, which ifidiunity is hereby rescrved 10,ihe
St This covenant ip fisispraph 13 shell survive the
termination of (bis Agrecmeit

14, INSURANCE. .

T41 The Comtractée ghilh: ‘ac ity sole ¢ ¢, obtsip &nd
continyously: mainuin in (ake, pnd chall rcquice  any.
subcontacior. oF assighce to dbusin and maintain in fairce, the
foflowing insurance” T
14,11 ‘commercial geacral Tidbility insurance agains sl glaiiny
of bodily injury.. déidti O prdptrty' damage,in, smidlint of aat
133 than $1,600,000. per Scriiict énd £2,000,000 aggresaic:
of dic:eu; and )

14.1.2 apecitl.cause aligsd toveruge-form covering all propenty
‘subject (o subplagraphi 10:2; herein, in an.amounl not l¢L3 than
§0%.of the:whalé replacement value of the propery.

"4 3 The policics deseribd in ‘abpargraph 4. Jicicin shall be
-on policy(oTiy-§0d gdl t_iepcamnpéfo.vea_'fdfjuit in'the Stare
ol New Hemipiiire by tie N.H. Diepartinént of Insyrgnes. end
-inucd.br;hﬂ\ir'{e[s_'!i,tj:_‘hsj:‘g!:inﬂn'-Sh(e.oGNéWtHirﬁp‘s,hi{c.
141 The Conractor shall, lumish o the Copuiding: Oficer
identficd in.Block | 98¢ iy or hes successor, -cénifiEae(s) of
insurance for A} infvirings required under “hig Apreient
Conirector shill:slsp firfishito e Gontracting Ofiteridentified
in Blodk 1.9, pr hid or heriwuccesion, certifiézit(s) of inturance

Tor- 611 Fénewb|(g)-of irisurance.required iger hisAgreement no

Iach g tén ({0) days iprior to the cigirgton datg -of cach
insuteice pélicy. The centificate(s) of ingurence and any
m@a_ls_:mmr-shill.be.vu‘x‘aeﬁeg-:iqa;yg:w_ gralcd herein by

15, "WQRKERS COMRENSATION., .
15.1 By signinig thi agreemenit;, ibe Cotfagior agrees. ceriifics
and .w';.ngi_._mﬁg-ém&vdma i comipligiice wilh or exempt
frieh. ¢k requiremenis.of NH. RSA-chigpigr 781 -A {*Rorkers
Conifensalion”). o
15.2 T e exienrihe Cofguciol isTsybjécyta the requirements
_of N.H. KSA. chapter 2814, Gotreciar ¢hall -maintain,. end
require any“subcontratldr or, hasignee 10 -secure: and maintaln,
payment of “Workeri: \Compgicriaglign dn cooncction. with
cctivities whichIhe erianpiopases (o underiake purfuaitio wis
Agreement The. Cantrigtorital! furmish he Coptracting Officer
idg‘pt_:ifmd'in'lila&-ZI-.9,,.'6i'_ﬁi'i,qr_hc_r.squ&ssor-;rmf of Workers
Compesissiion in- the. Rannét-dEseriped: in N.H. RSA chaples
2§)-A .and any spplicablé. rehcwbl(s) thereol which shiall bt
\rached and. wre -[BedpOigied herein. by refereade: The- Swate
shall nol. be: retpohsible for -payment of: ahy Workens'
Compensation prémiushs o¢ Tor eny. other <inim ‘or bédehl, o
Contecios, 0f Ay subcghtracior or employes BT Contivetor,
which. sriight &rizs uhdet applicabie Siate of! Nesv: Hpnpshiice
Workers' Compepgation laws: in conncaign with  the
performandc:ql thé Services under. Kis, Agreement.
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16. NOTICE. Any nolice by's pirty hereio to the ather ﬁm‘y .

“thall be-decmed tohave Been dily delivered or given Ao
of mailiog by-centificd. mail, postags pepaid, in o Uniled Sutes
Port Office addressed.to '8 panies 3t ihe. sddresses gived in
biocks 172 and 1:4; hertin,

“47. AMENDMENT. THis Agreement may'be amendéd, whivid

ar. discharged. only By on Instrument in wiiting sigried by. the
parties, herets gnd ooly afler spprovel of futh Fiendment,
waiver or dischirge by the Governor.and: Excagive Council-of
the Siste of New Hampshire:uniess'no such-epprovel, is feguired
under the circumstpncey pursusntio-$iate-law, rule or policy.

1§, CHOICEOR LAW AND FORUM. This Agrtement shall
be governed, intcrprétéd and. construed in_gcedrdance wilh-the
[aws of"the State of Ncw. Hempshire, end is bindlng upgd and
inures wiihe benefii 6f Ue pamtics.end their respoctive Suctegders
and'sssigns.. The wording vied in.this Agreement iy thgwording
chosen by the pafiies 18 gxpress their mutudlinieht, and ne rule
of consiruciiGn sl e applicd sgainn.or:infivor-alany party.
Aay sctions Erising:ovt of this Agreemesilsbat) helbroight and
maintined ih New: Hampshire Superior Court which shail'have
e:c'lhsii';..juri;'gi_c:ibq-_thcnof.‘ T

19, CONEVLICTING TERMS. 1. 1c -vent of e conflitt.
beiwedh thelgfms .qf;q!i_s_-.‘PU'J form (h'mdd_i.l_'l'c,d'-in-:EXHTBlfl'
AJ endlor sttachimiénty and emendmeot theréof, the (grmy of the.

237 (o5 modificd in, EXHIBIT K)shall oonBl.

20. THERD PARTIES. The paiticd hiitto’ dg oot invend 10
"benéfu, ey “third. parties and- i Ageciment:shall acl be

gonstnicd to confes any such benelit.,

2f, HEADINGS: The hesdingsidirgughout the Agrocment art
for réfereice: purposes onl¥, %#id. e’ Words rconteined ‘thertin
St i, 00; way-be-held o cxplBin; odify, aiglify or:aid i the
icrpretatiod, construction of Eaning of the provisions.of Whis,
AjreEmint o )

21, SPECIAL PROMISIONS. Addional or modifyirg
jprovisions:seuforih in the.angeticd EXHIB(V A are incorpdroted,
Rercin by reference.

‘3. SEVERABILITY. ugiﬁe_:q;_nm,;.d‘cm.pfoqiiioq;;gf-‘dii;

Agrecmenizars. held By-é:¢fin iif'c‘ompcicniajuﬁs't}iél.}on to be

.coniraryile tiny, ftite.of federal Iaw,‘-iﬁt-tcn‘uln‘ing' pigvigions of

ihis Aymni'cigliwiﬂjt;ml_ﬁ; in-fut) Toree ‘sfid effect.

24, ENTIRE.AGREEMENT: This-Agrecment, which nisy be-
cxecuted in a:nuiibicf of counterparty; each 6f which' shatl be:
dcemed -oh ofigindl; constitdies. the entite- Agreemint and -
undcrsanding bétwedn (K. pasties, and_isuieriedes: sll prios
agrecments ohd underTiandings with.res peit 1dithe subjectmaties
hereol.

.

Contractor, luuals
Date. ’ S



EXHIBIT A.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS
I. Subjiaragiagh.1.16 of the Genertl Provisions, K& not-apply. 1o this agrecrent.

2. On.or ticforc the date set.forth in Block. 1.7 of the Geaeral Provisions, Wi¢ Coduicior shall.
deliver to the-Stale an wridepéndent audit of ‘the-Contractor's.entirc agency- by a qualified

‘independent auditon i good:sianding with the stalc afid federal governmeayt;

3. This suditshall -b.cl.c.ds:lti'di::téil!:in' h_c‘op;d_n.noc_'wigh the sudit requirements of Offige-of
‘Mansgement ;md Bm_‘.lg'__el:.(.dMB_), Circulpr2.CFR 200, Subgast F- Augdit Requirements.
“The Fueh Assistante Program shell be consideiéd 6 “'&idjof program”™ far purposes df this.avdit.

4. Thisaudit repoft shallinclude schedule:of reveriues and expenditures by conitiaét or grant
diintier. tfdll expenditures duning the Contractor’s fiscal year. The:Cootracior,shall utilize e
conpelitive bidding;procys (6 choose 8 qualificd financial suditoret icast every four-years.

S. The-gudit ceport shall ifelude4.¢ehedule of grior*ycms‘.gpcslic'iriéa, Easts atong:with amAgerdy
fesponse {0 he:curedl SHatis af'the prior years® questionied costs. f(fop:ijes_ of:a) L/OMB letters
wrifien as-a resuTt SEauditsshall be forwarded lo-OS1. The audit-shall-be forwarded 16-OS1.
within one month of s ime of.receipt by the Ageacy, accompanied by ao actionplan.for-¢ich
finding:0f questioped cost. '

6. Deletéthe followipg from paragesph 10 of the General P,ro.vi_sli'.qns-':_""'fl"'lic fofimi, subject mattee,
conient, and pumber. o'f:éqﬁi'es oEbe Termination Repont shall betidintital to thgse-ofany Final
Repori described imExhibit A" : _ .

7 ?I‘Ehc_:gg.s!,sh ‘charged Liht_iijif‘.’t_'l"lis;p&'ﬁmgl shall be detcrmioed a4 atloivabie-under the cosi'pﬁ.ncii:ii'es
defailed in-2.CFR 200 Subpart E'— Cost Principles. - -

'8. Pedgam 8Ad financial records-pertaiging (o; this-cogtrect. shall be retdined by (H¢ Agency-for 3

(ahree) years from the:date ‘of subroigsion &f the find} expeaditure.repit.pér2 CFR200.33) -

Retention'Fequjtements-for Recordsafid untit all pudit. findings havé beth résolved.

9. ‘ln Accordance with Public:Law;103:13), ihe *Departments:of Libor, Hedlth and Hyman
Services;:and 'Edﬁéaﬁgﬁ,.a'.iidj.h;'l_’y..cﬂ_gﬂgcngics,Appfo'pﬁn'lior\"s-A'bl,’o:f 995", ihe.following
-provisions aré applicable to:this:grant award:

&) Sectiot 57; “Purghise of Americar -Made, Equipment nd Products -4t fsthe  sense
of'the Congress:(hal, 1@ the-grealest extent practicable, all equipfieit and’ products

-{l'l

pilschased with funds made availiblé in this. Act showld be. Afirican-madg”
by Section $98: ""Wﬁe,n iSSUiﬁ'g:smlcmtnts.‘prt'.-ssv'rclcascs,_:rédudstsrfbi'{f_irop_gsals.'bild
isplicifations and bih¢i'deeuments describing: projects or.programs:funded in. whole.or in
‘part wirli_fédc‘fn! mdhgy,.all states recciving, féderal {unds, including:but-not limited 16
stite-and l6¢al-goveiunents and reci

ipieats, of federnl research. gronts,.shail clearly stalg
$CS LINEAT ' . CrhiisA, B8
CFNAL9) 568, : Cosusaortiaty J 11
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© (1) the percentage of tie-tatai costs of the rogram or project which wiil be financed
with Tederral money, (2) the dollar amountof federal {funds for the projeckor program,
and (3) thé-peicentage ind dollaramount ol the total costs of the '_Qrgjg;i or program,thal
_will-be financed by non-govemmenial sources.” i )

16.CLOSE:QUT OF CONTRACT. Al final.reqiired reports and reimbursement reqisésts shall.be.
§obinied to the State within thity (30)-deys of the eompletion ﬂ:at'e‘(Agrccmcn'l-Bloé'k aAn..

1. M_)VA.NCES. Advarice funds must-be uscd solely 'fqr.a;‘g'prbprﬁat; Fuel Assistance Progiam.
experiditures. Advance program funds sre to be uséd:only ot Fue) Assistance Program:vendof
payirichts. ‘Afl Fuel Assistance Prograifi paymizdis, including Advange program payinents, ‘must
be vansferred from iheiCommu;}itg-Aui‘qﬁ; ngi:ncy"_s-g:cncral operating:account "u'lto o spesific
Fuel Assistance Program account within 48 hours oftet being reccived electroriically ftei the
State. CAAS musi-subroit the ban¥.sccount humbsgr.of the 'ﬂ"esignalcd'ba.rik'?acc'ouiit,fbr'ih,c‘
advance, funds to OS] priorto.the élecaariic dubtmissign of.the fynds t6.the CAA. Unspent.
Advance progran. find? st remainin'the FAP dsdicated.'accoﬁj\(.‘al.’a“ll"timc':'s anid cannol be
coniingled with.ahiyothér GAA fupds. CAAs are-requiired 10 gubmit:a compleie cleciyonic copy of

\thcF'AP-.db',i'!i"cat_éﬂﬁagi_k-'-#dcnqnl-.:.'lgi;_menuio OS] on a iGnthly basis.

scb LINEAM : ) ExhiliuA BR
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- EXHIBIT B
$COPEOF SERVICES

“The Contracior ajgrécs (o pravide Fuel Assistancé Program services to gualified low income
individuals, and 8grogs 16 perform &l such services ind otfierwotlcnecessary 10 opertle the Ploghain ip
accordance. with the réquiterbents of-this-contract, the-principles and ogjeciives st forth.in the Fudl
Asiittance Frogram Procedures Manual, nfdrmation Mergorunds; and.other-guidanct. as digrmitcd )
by OSI. :

Fuél Assistance Program (F AP)-scrv\!'i'ttc‘s will be:dgfined to.include the following ‘cateponics:
. Ouireach, cligibility; dctermination and certification of FAP dpplicants.

2. Payments directly to &nérgy vendors:”
0. Reimnburscmernitfor goods and services delivéred
6. Lines of crediic ’
& Budgel plap payments

). Payfénts direstly 19 {andlords.via voichefs for renterswho pay:thicir cricrgy: costs asiundefined
portiops of their rent.

4 Paymhents direttly to.clieritsionly when deemed appropriate and hecessary ps-dcﬁnbd-in’.thcfl-‘uél
Asgistance-Procedares Maniugls . :

$) ‘Emérgency Assistahce in'the form of réifbursements fqr goods or services delivered'in
docérdance vilh parogmphs 3 .and 4-abové.. ,

$SCS LDAEAPL
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EXHIDIT €
PAYMENT TERMS
" 1 consideraiion.of the $stisfictory. peeformance.of thé senvices-as determingd by the Stitc; the State
agrees-to pay over t thi¢-Cantipelor the sum of $3,221,041.00 (which Rereinafier igreferred g as the
*Sranl™). |

!J_pon;th,c-"s,tqlc's-'recé'ip(.d[':die_ 2621 Low Income Hame Biiergy Assi s,_tgm_:’c-?r_ogrq.m_grant-‘frorh.dic'ug
Deporument-of ‘Healeh and Human Services, the Follawing _.'fuh‘ds will be authorized:

§262,350:00 for.agministration-costs, of which $32.794.00 will be.issded as a.cashedvance; .
$2,7§4,650.00 for.program costs; of which $278,4¢5.00. will be:issued ¥s.a cash advance;.
$174;041.00 fof As§urance 16, ; '

ric dates: for this-contract.aic ,E')_cgti'&e_n 1, 2020 through Septéniber 30, 2021,

at'pgfovalsl'd'oti'figﬁlc {Exhibit 1) the above:awarded funds will e provided in writing,by:tie Officeof
Straiegic Initidtives to the Contracior,as the Tederal funds béc'qm“c availyble: Drawidowns Ffom:the

* balance-of funds Will be mode 10.the. Congractor-only afte? m mcn.dbc,qmqnlja'ljon-of-cash.n‘déh is
submitied.to ttie Staté. Disburseront of the Guant shil be-ih secogdancewith procedires esuiblished
by-the:State 6 degiled in the E\;_cl.Assislni\ce.'ﬁ:ﬁgi:'m'Fro‘c_c_durcs ‘Menual.

CEDATille: Low Iricome Honte: Energy .k;;'_i.stp.up_c Prograni
CFDA No: 91.568

Award Name: Low Tricome HomietEnergy ASSistarice -B.rdsmm'
Fedéral Agency: l-lleal'lh':&.}{ur_'ﬁdh.SéM_‘ccjs,

Adimisation rprsghjldr_c,q_ and Eamiliés
. Office of-Cotuminity Services

SCS'LMEAF2I
CYDANT).S88




NEWHAMESHIRE OFFICE OF STRATECIC INITIATIVES
STANDARD EXHIBIT D

“The Contractor-identifiéd in Sectidn i 3 of the Genersl.Provisions §iges.to comply withithe provisions of
Sotiions 5151:5160 9l the Drug:Free-Workplacé Act f 1984 (Pub. L: 160690, Titte ¥/, Subittic!D; 41 yscC,
701 ¢iseq.), and furthei Agrees t_q’;l'}'_n,\:e_'_ih_:;'(;qm}ndhr.‘s:rt_pmuiinti.\'ie',. adidentified in Segtions 1.1 .end 1.12 of
thie.Genctal Provisions, executs the:following Certificatign;

GERTIFICAT)ON REGARDING DRUG:FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE L - EOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS:

USREPARTMENT:OF HEALTH ARD HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
_US,DECARTMENT QF EDUCATION ~CONTRACTORS
/S PEPARTMENT OF ACGRICULTURE ~ CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US'DEPARTMENT. OF ERERGY’

This-cchification isrequired hry the regularions implementing:Seclions 51.51.5160.0f the:Diug Free; Workplice
Agysf 983 (Pub: L. 100:690, Tatle:V, Shbtine B; 41 WS, 701 ci-seq . “The JakiuRy 31, 1989 fFegulations were
emended.end publishied.gs Port lipfthe May.25, T990 Fidets) Rogister (pages 3168) 12169}, and reqiire
géfmifitation by granices (and by.iffeiéich Sub-granteey and‘subrcontractors) prior 16 swdrd that they will
-maintain 8ddug-free wirkplace, Section:30 12.830(c) 61 ine ry:gulqjjz._ﬁ;pﬁgngcs-ihan-a-.grnqtec,.'(mg by infeteiite:
sub-giantees and subscontrattors) that 13 & sTate miny ¢leci fo:make:one cenifichtioh 1§ Uit O¢pariment'in-cach
Tederal-fiseal yéarin licy of cerifigales for-cach grontdunng:the Federd Hscal year covered.by-Uieemifiéation,
The cenificaic setioutbelow isa Hidtenal Fepresentation of;factupon-which FelibAce i-blaced when:the Agency
owirdd icigrnt, Folse sctification or violstion &f e eertifitstivn shall be-grounds fdr suspénisioh of payient,
$vspengion.artemination.df greds, '6({362’:?11@‘:‘@1-%8.:lguspcnsion or-débirment. Contriciors-using-this form

should$&nd.itto:

Diredsor; Néw Hampshire:Office of 'Stiilb‘a:ﬁ.jn'iljijgi'&c's,-
107 Pleasant Sireét, Johisod Hall; Gangord; NH 03301

{8  'Thograntee cériifics thal HE - | -_cqgiinuc.'lb-pm,gjd‘er..amg-frée warkplace by:

(@)  Publighing o fatervent notifying:employees:ihitthe wrtawfal mtautacture, distribution,
Bispensing, possessidn or.oe 3 al's goniralled-subsiance is préhibited, if the Brantes’s
vigridglee:pnd specifying the-actions thit Wili e teken ggainsy employocs:fér viblatioh of such
prohibitidfi; :

(t)  ‘Esteblishing:sh ong'biiigdfﬂg}ﬁ’g_'g gwarcncss programtd.infaiTh employeesiabout

(1) WN¢ ogagen dfdrijpatiis ifs (heworkplecs:;
£2) the granice’s policy.al maiAginiig 'g‘g‘;q;,f_rﬁc workplace;
@)y dny available drug coynseling, retiabilitation, &hd,cmployes assisiance:progriims; dnd.

«. 1hc pensliies 1h£v-mn_;_rb'¢=iﬁp§sbﬂ"h‘;;on einployees: for-drug abuse viclatigis deeurming in
e workplece:

(¢  Miking it o spguirementthateach employck 1 be chigaged in ihe performance:of. the grant be
Biven a copy of the stateméni requifed by perepraph (o)

(&)  Wgifying the employee in-the.sts]éiient tequircd By:paragraph (8} thal, a8 chindingh of
employiieAt-undet the grant; the employee will
(i) abide by the terms.of the siiefient; and

F37°Exhibits D thra H
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CERTIE(CATION RECARDING DRUC-PREE: WORKPLACE EEQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVET - PGR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, coot'd

USTEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND AUMAN.SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
© " US;DERARTMENT. OF EDUGATION - CONTRACTORS
(S DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTQRS!
'US DEPARTMENT QF LABOR.
US.DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY'
(2 hotifyihe etigloyer in;writing of his-qr herconviction. for o-violation of-a cAiminol druy:
s1atute occurming:in the workplace no later thai five caléndad days: sfge Suth conviction,

Naotifyiiig the ggency in wriling, within tencalender days aftcr_receiving ndticé undek
subparsgroph (d)(!)ffoih ii'employee.or othenvise.feceiving gciydl notice of such conviction
Eeployce. of copicied cmployees must provide notics, including position title, (o every grant
Gfficcr- 66 whbse giehraitjvity thic.conycied omployee.was working, unles;*lhcfedcnf sgenty-
has designated o.central pdint far. the receife of such ndties. Notice Shall include ihe
idcanhication Aumber(s) of éach-elMected gront; :
Taking anc.of. ihc-following dctions, within 3Q-calgndar days of receiving notice-under
subparsgrph (8)2], with respectio eny cmployee wha is.56 Conviced: .
{1) Teking eppropfidte personacl nction,against sich cn.c‘nﬁ;ﬁlbyc'c';.‘uﬁ]ﬁ wrid igcluding’
(Erpifintion, tonsistent withthe requircments of the Relubilitaiion Act of 1973, as
.amended;-or. : )
(2).  Requiring tuch employes (o perticipate satisfactorily in a.drup-abuse assiflaiice or-
‘rehabilitation program approved. fo such Purposes by’ fedésal, §iaic, gfJocal higdlin, law
&aforcement, or othes 8ppRropriste sgency:

Makilig o gﬁoﬂ;ftiu\:cftﬁf {5 coniinuc (o majntain‘e drug-frec.workplace-through impleiméhtation
of paragraphs (8),:(B), (¢}, (@), 1e), énd (O )

{B)  Thegrantee mayinsertin the spacc projided; below the s'_i.t.q('_s) forthe :\ﬁqf’fpmngjqq:q_f‘m.ri:-honq in
 conectiop'yith e specilic grant. .

Pisse of Pecfominrice:(sticks address, tity, couniy, state, 1ip code) (list eachloceddn)

Cheek [if thert gre werkplaceson ‘fife-thar arc not identificd here.

Soythyesteen Communify Services, Inc. Octéber, |, 2020 io September 30,2021
“Contractor-Namce " Pericd covercd by this:Ceifigation

John A_Manning: Chief Executive Ofickr

‘Name and.Title of Aviliorized Contracior Repreientative

(}'LA MM | 9/9/2020-

Coninﬂbr Represdulalive Signature, Dot
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NEW HAMPSHIRE QFFICE:OF STRATEGIG INITIATIVES
STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contraciarideniified in‘Section 1.3 of the'General. Provisions agrees.to.comply with the provisions of
Section.J 19 of Public:Law 101 2121, Govemmiest wide Guidaact, for New Hesteictions-oh, Lobbying: and 3 |
U:SE. 1152; and-furthes agrees:to,heve (he.Cantractor's representative, as-identified. in Sections .14 and 1.12 of
ihé Gencral Provisiofis, Execute’the follbwing Cenification:

GERTIFICATION REGARD'ING LOBBYING

USDEPARTMENRT-OF HEALTB AND HUMAN SERVICES CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION -~ CONTRACTORS
U4 DRPARTMENT OF AGRICVLTURR - CONTRAGTORS
‘US:DEPARTMENT-OF LABOR
t/§ DEPARTMENT OF ENERGV

Prograrié (indicate appticablle progmm covered):
" LIHEAPR .

Contract Period Ociober 1,.2020:to'Seprember 30,2024

Theiuridersigned certifies:to the bestwof his or her knowledge:and belicf thatt:

(1) Nofederst spbraptiated:funds have:been paid or awill be puid by oron behplfiof the:undersigned, 10 sny
person for‘influencing or sitempting 10:iaflitnct-dn.officér on ¢éiiployes of.ony dgedcy, pimember of
Songreis, an‘officerar. employee of Congress, oren employec. of aimember of ' Congress-in connection
with thf::iw'ai'ili}ij-.dff-_dﬁy tedesdi chrirbde; continadtion, réntival, irmenduicny; §r niodificaton of any
‘federalontrech; grant, loan; or cogperative agreement (and by spesific.intnition subigrantee or sab-
CORLFRRION)., S

(2]  IFany:funds:other than federal.appropristed Fundshavé-beon-paid.or will b paid;to:any perses for
infiGendingor augnbting 1o infaeice anofficer or employde of gny'.qssncy¢7@ ‘meaiber of Congress, an.
oﬁ':r.crjor‘cmplqyeo of-Congress; orinemployee ofd hiérﬁ@ef-’_dﬁ_ﬁoﬁgr'é'ss':lﬁ':éi:'ririétt'idﬁ.ngt}_i this’
bed el taqritract: grant, idan, bF copperativeagresment (Bnd by specific menfion subkgrantee of sub:
gba_iimclof}.;.{fmuﬁdérs'!'g_ne.d shdll carplete. snd €ubimit Steadard For GLL, “Oitciosure Form:te Regon.
m_hsyh‘gzgm;umcqm@wi@‘ii; instiuctions, otiached:and ideniified as Siandard Exhibit Ext. '

()  The-undemignedsha)l realiire that fhe langilsge of this'ceriification be included in the:award document

. for-sabawards-at:all tiEFs (iEIuding subtonltriess, Shb-grints, and céﬁti:h't:jﬁ'yrid:el';'g{i;n!s. logns, and
eooperative dgreemenishand thacgl) subrecipients shall certify'and.disclose sccordingly.

Thit ceiGEANSH i.6 Muteral reprétenntichof fict ubon whigh-reliadce wag plocedivhen this-transsction was
made.orentered Intd. Subiifislidn of thig cgrificariod i;‘_‘iij;_'fgri:qq'isir_c_;foi, migl g Grentering intg this-(ransaciion
fi?npqs,é,d',tgy‘ﬁcq_t_ipg‘- 1357, Titesd), U.§; Code. Any person who.fails to-file the:required:cerifiéation shll e

subjeci,#57) civil'pensliy ofnot.lcss than 510,000 and.ndi miore U:a7:5700,000 F6iF &62R uich fiitiire:

N b : ; ; ChisFERLTIIVE Officer. -

¥

——— o LAY TS - e
fk_:nuncmr&e_pm:en{alwe'-S18nalure Coniractor:s.Représeriative. Title
o1 * 0

_John. A= Manning ' 9/9/2020.
Contraciof NAmE: T Due

Py Exhibits'O.akru 14
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NEW HAMPSHIRE, OFFiCE-OF $TRATEGIC INITIATIVES
STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contractor:idenified.in Section 1.3 ofahe Generst.Provisions egrecs:lo cohply withitthe-provisions of
Exccutive Qffice of it President, Execitive:Order 12549 and ¢5-CER Part 76 vegarding Debarment; Suspension,
end-Other Responsibility Matters,.and.fuirther agirees to hisie thie Cortractt’s representative; as identified in;
Sectigns b.01 and 1.17 of the Genergl Provisions; exccute the-folluwing Centification: -

GERTTRICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBTLITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERF.D TRANSACTIONS

Ingigactions for Genlficotion

(1) By signing and.submitting: this-proposd). (contract), the ‘prospective primiry pofticipaitiiy providing the
cénification st qut below: . Y o o '

(2) The inability of:e peison.to provide the cémification required below will not figcessafily-resull in denigl of
participation ip this eqvered transaction. If necessary, the prospeciive participant-shall sibmitén
cxplanaiion of why it.cannot: provide:the cénification. The certificalion gr explanstion will be conajdered’in
cdnricetion withtie NH Office 6F Strategic initistives” determination whether to enter into this.trangaction.
However, failure of the-prospeciive.primary pacticipant Lo furish-a.certification or an éxplanatign ihall
digqualily tich persdn,figm pasticipation in this; iransaction.

{3) Thecerdification m whis.Clause.i$ o /nalerial tepiesentation of féct upn which rélignce, was placed when ost
deteimingd 10 ehtee:ine thistrmnsaciion. Ifivis lover determined 1hat the prospeciive priméry pafticipant
knowingly iéhdcred.an Hontos;Conifi galion, in addition 10 giherremedics ovailable-to tic féderal:
govesnment, OS] may tgrminaie tiis: transaction for cause or default: :

{4) "The prospective;prifbrypasticigdiit shell provide immadinfe: wiilten nétice 1g the OS1 agency 1o whom this
prapagss) (coniact) Ts submitied:if at sny time the-prospective. primary participant leartis thail its.cerification
was erroncous whicn submiited 6f hesbéconic erfoiiediidiby fedor of thanged FiréymBuances.

(8) “The e “covered wangaction," debarred;" “suspended ™ “ineligible," “lower tier covened trensaciion,”
“perticigent,” Sperson,” ~ primiry covered transactign,” “principal,” “dropasal;-and “volunterily.cxcluded,”
as used in this.clause; haveithio meanings:set oul in the: Définitions. §hd Coviersge sREtofs QF ¢ 1yles
im;sleiﬁehaih;g'sugmm'Qqu:.-.-i_'z $49: 4:CFR Pért 76, Seeilhic pttached definitions: .

(6) The-prospestive;primary"pariicipant agrees by submitting 'lh'is-qu;_iosal"(cbﬁrf’t_i:t),‘,lhg_g.}ﬁ‘izu'_lg,_tﬁe propossd.
covered \ransécion be éntered initd, il shiall Wdt knowingly enier inig any lower-tier covered erensaction with
2 pergon who'is debasred, puspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded: from pafucipstioninthis
covered tansaction, unlcds.suthoéized by OSI. ' :

(7)-Thg prospeclive primary parlicipant further agrees by submirting,this-proposal that.it will inclide the ¢lsust -
titled “Cénifics(ion Regarding DEGapmenl, Suspension,,ineligibilify and Vluntary. Exclusion : Lower Tier
Covered Tinnsacffons;_"fﬁrogi‘dcd by; 0S|, without:modificalion, i S1.I0WCr AieE coviered trintactions &nd.in
a1l soliitatipns To lower. vér Govered rmnsactions. , .

(8) A panticipanisin a-covered transection-mey rely upon 4 certification of & prosgective:pakicipant in o.Jower tier
Eovéred transacriaon thal it.is.:noi:debarred, suspended, incligible, or-involuniarily excludéd frdin UhE covered
transaction, unless: it kaows that:ihe centification is crofcops. A pariicipant moy decide the meihod and
Trequéncy by:hihfbhéil determifies the:eligibitity of its principals. Each-pasticipant may, but:is not requiftd
{o; check the Non:procurement List {ofexcluded pestics). ‘ .

{9) Nodii'hgfcﬁ_ﬁ,t@iheﬂ.‘in.(h‘éj 'f_gi,rt_:goin‘g’ {liall be-ganstrned-to require cstablishment of 8.system ofirecords:in order.
to-rendes in good fiiththe:ceriification required.by tiis clause. The:knowledgeé aid information of 4
pAfiEipRiig isshot Fequired 1o escoed. tharwliich is normally passcssed by.s prudent:persontin the ordinary
course.of business:deatings.

{10) Excépt for wransiiclignhs-auticrized ynder paragroph § of these instructions; if a-participant in 8 cpvered
Irunsaclion knowingly:enters.ifito plower tier covered tnindaction with ¢ person -who'is Suspended,.debarred,
ineligible, or volonturily exclided. from Par\'ici'palipn.in this transaction, in eddition 16 dilier rethedies
availablc 10 the _fcﬂ,;'@}_sp?s’?ni'henj;,OSI may lermingte this trongsciion for causc ordefaubt,

; B3 7 Exhibits D theu M
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RF,SI?G_'NS_IBILII‘-Y'MTFERS - PRIMARY-COVERED. TRANSACTIONS, contld .

Ce'ﬂ{[?é&ﬂa’:i.ﬂé_gérﬂing Debariiént; Suspension, and Other
Responsibilily Mafiers : Primary. Covered Transactions .

(1) Tfh@'pmspcclive-‘primu,y partitipast r.c't‘iiﬁi:‘s 18 (he bést of ifs k_ﬁ_ow.lcd‘ge‘-;nd'_ &I_igf;‘tﬁn_i:;t,.gri& it§
printipals: ’

(8)  nsenot preseatly.dedsinred; suspendod, proposed for dcbament, dictared.ineligiblc, of voluntarily
excluded froimcovéred tronsaérigds by dny fedefel depariment orpgency; ’

(b)  hsve notwithin e three-yeaf-period picceding this!proposal (contrct) been éarvicted of or had a
civil judgmént, rendereq pEeihist the forcommigsion of froud or for p:criminsi.offense in -
conncctiion, with obiaining;.aniempting 10.obtain, orperforming.a public(feddty, §1ate.of logal).
trahsaclion of-» conUaes urider 8 public weniaciion; vigloton qf Federalor Sutcaniitryst satutcs
or commission of-embezziement, thel, forgery, bribery; fatsification.ér. deéiucnion of cecond,

cheking false sitements, 6f reckiving stolen property:,

(c)  ark noLprésénly indicicd for-otheinvise criminally orcivilly charged:by s governmentalentity
(ﬁ_:derﬂ,_s.l'aic':or"loc.al)';wiih commission-of any of the offeases: ennrcrited.in paragteph.(1)(h) of
this centificotion; and C

(d)  haveindt withina thiree:yedr-picriod preceding this! h_p_‘p'!j_r;a;i'pnlg_ropos_al' hadone or:more public
(Tederal, state-or ipcal) transactions ierminated for-cause or deflaull.

(‘2) . Whete the pjbjpe_cti\_ré-'ﬁr;!ﬂan":p_a.riféqum i3 unable to certify toany of the siatements in this
certification, such-prospeciivé phiticipant-shell atach on;cxplanation td this proposel (goniricr).
/
Ceriificafion ‘Regarding Debdérrivest, Siipension, neligibiliyy &d
“VolunthtyExclugion r Lower Ticr Cavered Transaciions,
. (To BerSupplied to-Lower Tier Participants)

By signingand ‘submitting this-lowe-tié:pioposa).(cBilrsty), the prospective loweriticr panicipant; as definedin
.45 CFR Pait'76, cédific's to'the hest of i“,k;lg\vl_cﬂ'gc. and'beliel thei it end its principals: :

('Pj_ are-hat presently yé&a_rrcsj'.-,sqs'ge_'ndeg. proposed for dcbarment, declared incligible; or. voluntanily
excluded;from g,ahii:'ibd:io?\-ih 1his trehdoctibn by tihy feders). departrentici.pgenty.

@®) whieie lﬁ&_pi,'o’tp’c;éfiyj:.:j'giﬂ_:f tier ;?‘nqic_iﬁg'ql-i's unableio centify to any-of the above; such’
prospeciive-participany sholl aitach an.explanstion 1o.this proposa) (cofitrity).

The prospective -'lbwéq tier papio?puq!'fqﬁhpr agrces-by :-ubmiuing.khis prnponl-(comraci)‘:’iﬁsl-.’u.uiIl?ihclude' thiis
clause éntitled “Getification Regprditig Q,g_bn:gn_cnt,ﬁ,u_spu_uiqp, Ineligibiliry, qni!'\'{dluntlny;ﬁkt_:!uiibnz.t.Lower
Tier Covered Transactiony;” without modification ifdll-lower tief-coveicd trensdetions and’ip;ali sélicitations, for

IowUmum& transactioris, .
y L& Mm Chiefl Bxecitive Officer

_]benlrncioiik'qﬁiesﬂtliti.vb:Sigpa’rbfc Conticior's Representativo Tille
Jahn A, Manning . ) 992020
Contractor Name . Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATECIC INITIATIVES
STANDARD EXHIBIT &

CERTIFICATION.RECARDING THE
AMERICANS WITHDISA BHITIES AGT. COMPLIANCE

_The Codtrictdr ideatified in Sectign 1.3 of the Genera) Provisions égﬁ:cs by signsture.ofthe Contractor's
representative as identified in Scctions 1.1 .and 1.12 of the Genecal Provisions, 1o execute the following

centification:

By sighing end submitting tig proposel (contract), the Conimclor agrees-to make ressonsblé:¢fontsto
csmply with all opplicable-provisions-of the Aditri¢ans with Disabilities Act of 1990,

, . Chief Executive Officer
7 Rcpresghative Signsture ' Contractor’s NeproseatotivE Titlc

Contrat!

john A, Mpririing 2192020

Contractor Name . Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OR STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
STANDARDEXHIBITH

CERTIFICATION
Public Law. 103227, Pert G
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

|igecordince with Pér C of Publie Law 103-227, thi “Pro-Children Aciiof 1994, smoking may-not be

permiticd in any portien of any indoor facility oxmcd G feyulurly used for'the-provision of health, day care,
‘educatibn, or library gervices (o children-ander the age-of 18, if'he services wre fundéd by federe) ptogramy eithey
directiy-or through fuate or lodal gpycrﬁrﬁe‘ﬁu._Fdd_eul programs intiude granls, cooperative agreements, logns
and loan guaraniees, and contracts. The law:goes:not:apply to children’s scrvicds provided in pfivité.redidéhces,
facililies- funded solcly by Medicare or Medicaid funds, Asié.poniohs of facililigs used for. inpaient drug or
slcohol treatrhént: .

“The:aboy 1anguage must be'inclugded. in uny subawards that contain provisions for children’s Services:itnd Uiat:all

sub-grantees shall ce:ﬁfy-cangiihncéiéﬁofdiﬁgix.'an'iiﬁie;ldcprt'{ply with the provisicns of dis lew:may. resylL.in
thigimposition of o-civil monetary penslty of upto $1,000 per day. ,

iy

Al LMA ) . Chicl-Cxecutive Officer

‘Contrador Reprdséntative Sigriature: Continctar's Represcnwtive Tillo
John A, Manaing: . . 9972020

Contractor Name ' Daic_

. PJ7 Exhibits D thru H
LIHEAP2(
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PAP Aphrovs!te Obligate EXNAMPILE ONLY B1hibit ¢
: APPROVAL TO'OBLIGATE '
FUEL-ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

STATE

First 27172018 Wood and EEAS.O
CONTRACTEDBUDGET: ; . ‘ : -
EXPEC TED BUDGET 0.00. 0.00 -0.00 000 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED. _,___. 0.00 046 0.00 0100 000

ADMIN, SEAS

A FROGRAM g\ss'unmc's-qa YOTAL

606 000 1/165,551.00

OTALAVAIABLE TOOBLIGATE 000+ 116585100

NOY Aumomzeo TOQBUGATE . 63512000 440 isto 450260  357,20000  5,80,831:60
BMCA _

Flrel 724/2018 ADMIN.____ FA PROGRAM SEAS,__ ASSURANCENS: TOTAL

CONTRACTEOBUDGET ~ .~ '95063.00. -
EXPECTED BUDGET i S T i g 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED - 0.00 Q.00 . 6.00 0.00 . 0.00
THIS APPROVAE'TO:OBLIGATE: D = T —

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBUGATE 0:00 207.112.00 0.00 0.00 207,112.00

NOT AUTHORIZED TO QBUGATE £5.663.00 796.474.00- 1,000.00 69.960.00 '863.097.00
SNHS | . .
Firsednizoie. . ADNIN. . FAPROGRAM SEAS  ASSURANCE.18 TOTAL

TYE.TIT00 . A.TA6,162:00 - 100000 - 84;220.00:  1;96F149.00

EXPECTED BUDGET

FREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED. "0l 0,00 0.00 0.00 - 0:00

THIS APRROVAL TO OBLIGATE! T0.00 . . 354518:00 . 000 ' 000 .- I
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 000 "354-518.00 0.00 000 354.576,00
ROT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 163,777.00 1,362,474.00 1,000.00 184,220.00 1,642,571.00
SC$: .

FIEY 7172008 ©_ ADMIN, . _ FA PROGRAM EEAS  ASSURANCE'S  TOTAL.
CONTRACTED, squET- T T 8183500, .. 1879,501.00° " .. "625100 - . [64,360:00 - 1,020,321:00;
EXPECTEQBUOGET. = T . T 000

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED ] 0:00 0:00. . o.bo_ 000 0.00

OTACAVAIABLETO OBLIGATE 000 _ 18150400 0. & 000 18750400
: NOI AumoAIon 10 OBLIGATE' M d4800 . B9v.90T.00. '826.00 64:960.00 B47617:00
CAPSC ;
SEAS _ ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL.

_Firat mrz‘o‘fs‘ ADMIN, EAPROGRAM,

PRE\'ﬂGU’SL-Y'.OBLIGAIEd ' 600 0% _o.oo_ _ 000 000

: y :AVAJL‘ABLE.T.O OBLIGAYE i 118 373100 100 R
NOT.-AUTHORRZED TO oaucns 64,676.00 485,220.00° 767 .60 55/110.00 565:763.60
TCCA . . : ;

‘Flrst /112019 ADMIN. FAPROGRAM °  SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

GONTRACTED.BUDGEY . .. = - "140,269.00- /- 471538000 -, 1.000.00. - "182,850.00
EXPECYTED.-BUDGET ' ' " _ .00
PACVIOLSLY OBLIGATED 6.00 - -0.00° 0.00 0.00 0.00
THIS;APPROVAL-TO/OBUGATE * * ~ - 000, - 0 . 0000 . i ~303;984
TOTAL-AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE: "0.00 -303,084.00. 0.00, Q.00 303,964 op
NOT. AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE. {80,26900 146765400 1,000.00 $2,850.00 1,399, rn 90

LIHEAP?!
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGICINITIATIVES.
STANDARD EXHTBIT J.

GERTIFIGATION.REGARDING THE FENERAL:FUNDING AGGOUNTABILITY
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federai Fundifig Accouhtebility snd Transparency Act (FFATA) -requires: prime awirdeds: of
‘individual feder! grants equal {o or greaterthan.$25,000 &id awarded o or after Ociober i, 2010;:t0
Tepgnt on.data rélated | g.\'o:u,f.i_vg compensation and sssocisted ﬁrsl-'ti‘:r-‘;ub-gi‘h‘ﬁts-_hf £25,000 or thore.
IEiherinitid) awird is below $25,000 but-subsequéni grin{ medifications resulrin:e total eward equal-lo.or
Quer'$25,000, the pward is subjoctto the FFATA repodting requiremEfit-ds $1.the date of the award,
Arifgkardinge: with 3 CFR Ban 170 (Reporting Subowar une Exceutive Canipensotion Jrforitioir), the
‘New: Hampshire-Office of. Suattygic Initiatives musireport the fpllgwing'i nformalian-forany subswand of
cohricrawerd sybjectcothe EFATA reponting requiifements: :

1) Nanie 6f entity-
2) Amooitofaiafd
3) Eyndingpgency _ .
4) NAICS cods for tamirscty/ CFDA:program number forgrants.
5) Rrogrum sourte '
§) Award1itle descriplive of he'purpose of the.funding schich
7) Location of thik éntity :
8) Principal place of performance :
9) Uhiqueidentifict of fhe-entity (DUNS #)
*10) Tolal corhperisation:and:aames:af tic (o five ekecutives ifi . ;
‘s More iban:§0%-of annual gross revehiies aie, Trony the Feder) governinerit and4hose:
fovenuéy bfe gieater than $15M annually, and.

*

b. Compéhsation informstion is-rigt slecpdy pyailable through:reporning:to the SEC.

Prime granfcecigiesiy must submit FFATA-requiicd dath by e ehd of the month plus:30 days in which
‘he:award br aivard arfiendméd) is made. _

. The Contrectorddentificd’in'Seclidn 4.3 of ke Cg;h_e:r\g_l‘E‘(g\?is_igqs-g‘grge_sjIo-Eor;lply‘\vilh the provisions.of
The Feders!"Funding .A¢codm.nb'_ili'ty-l'.'f.l§ 'Tt‘gnsp#fgn_cjr Act; Public Law 109-282 and Public Law .110-
383, and 2 CER.Por' 120 (Répoiring Subdiwoid and: Exeguive ‘Compensution- Inférmation), tnd
furth¢ripgrees. to have' the Contrector’s representaiive, -as: idéntified in Sections 411, and 112 of the
Genieral Provisions, exocute the following Cerlificatién:

Thi biciow named Contractoragrees 10 provide. ncedod infarmatidn 83 odtfined ‘abéveto thie New

Hi.mpsh.nm Oﬁ'-,c”gz-qf Sualegit initiatives and to comply wilth dllapplicable prdvisions df the' Federsl

Fingnciat Accouritsbitity nd Tfﬁhspaf:qcrAct.
(Eon ctor'Repmsu‘aléliv'e'-S 1§nasuirc) (ﬁ,q'mbti:c_d_'épntchl_or' Represenintive-Name & Title).

dees, Ia QRN
(ate)

o Gonurecig l\_iliﬂau_
Pute %“Q_L-J‘

Pogo | of-2
LIHEAP2I EFDAN9).S68
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'NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
STANDARD EXHIBIT J
“FORM'A
Azthe Coniractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Geners) Provisions, | certify that the: eesponses 10 the,
Below listed -t itions- are tueiond.octiyste.

f, The DUN$ numberfor your catiyis: 081 251381

2. In-your busdine33:0r organizition’s preceding completed fiscal year, did ydur buginess.or ‘Grganization
receive {140 percenivor morecof your-ennun! gross.revenue jn U.S. fcderal contracts, subcontrocts, loghs,.
grants; §ub-giunti, ondlor EGopiérative-agrééments; opd (). 323,600,000 or.mare. in Annusl gross eevenues
from US. federl contracty, subcontracts, loans, granks, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreemenis?
if{he Riswer 10 #2 shove'is NO, stop here:

‘If thie gASwer to:H2abdve is Y{ss';jnmé,fg'm_wqt.;‘h‘e.’fbjtjb-,{iﬁ_‘g':
3. Does tﬁmpublic have accesso infarmation aboul'the cbri'@;_xnsilfdn of th:c éxetutives in your Bosincss:
ot-organization thravghi periodic reports filed under section 13(¢)-or 15(d) of the Securities.Exchange Act
oF-1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(p), T85(4)).67sectibn 6104 Gl g, Iatgmia) Revene:Code of 19867
NO. , — YES

‘If the.answer-to K.ubove is YES, staphert.
. Iftheanswer 1o #l.above s NO, please soywer.theTdllowing:

4, Thé:finrties and compensafion of thé five mast highly.compensarcd officess in your business or
organizsiionsre as follows:

?-'Jnmt.:-’,_____.. Amounl’ ____
Name: . Amouny -
Nemes, ' . Amount |
Nime: ' Amount;
Name: o _ Amount:

"Cantoctor 1 .Q_M_
Date _Q "‘lll-v
g4

UIHBARIT.CFDALS).500

\



State of New Hampstire
Depattment of State

+

CERTIFICATE

1, Witiam M. Gardner, Secremry of Smte of te-Slate of New Hempshire, 8o heredy. cenify that SOUTHWESTERN'
COMMUNITY 'SERVIGES, ING. is s New Hampshire Fongrofit Corponion registerod i traiveet Business v New )
Humpshire on My 'L9; 1955, 1 Amner eetify, Gidt alf fees ik docuréAts roqdired.by ihc Seeredify 6f Saré's affice, have oen
reécivid and i2 i ool bandingias furas (his office isiconcemned.

' Businexd 10268514
* Cenihiic Rumber: 0004b3084

1N TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

| hererd; ded iy haid wnd came tode iffipid
the Sca! of the:Sate-olNew ‘Hermpshire,
016 dayol ABAIA D 2020,

Willlam M.'Grrdner
Seerciary of Ste

Oﬂ\'\\“’



CERTIFICATE OF y.g?_r_.f:;é.
.(Conpd‘ra'tc.huthorigf '

Sou!hwes!em Community. Services Inc,
(Gorpdinsionnariv)

I, __KevipWanerson ; Chairperson.of.
corporation, hereby eeitify thal (1) Lem: the-duly

(Nume)
{Hercingfter the “Corpom:on!') 8 _Rew Hampghirg;
(Sur)
‘elected ' nnd acling Clcr\dSccrcurnyfﬁ:er of the Corporston; {2} T- miinin.dnd have tustddy" and: em. familiar
with the inutc:tiooks of the: Corpbrnnon (3. [ duly authorizgd toissug certificaies with respect-tp the
cantents of such:books; 1(4) ihal- ke Board: of Dir¢ctors of the Corponuon hive! nulhonzcd .on' _Qﬂ_mmj_, such
{Dwie)

outhbnry to be in force.oid eflectuntil 1.
(Contmerterminstian daic)

‘e Bélaw listed msmoh{g) afe. wthon‘u;d o exceute and deliver on behatf of the

‘The: puwu{s),hdtdung
Corpomuon any’ contncfor othes, instrument for.Uhe sale of productf ahd LEAvices:
John A: M ag.g’i'ng- . CEQD
i{pleme) (roiricd)
(Name) (Position)

(5) The metiing of the Boarg: of Dirgctors was held.in accordance with N;w Heampliire
(Suec of Iuocpomion']
law did.the by-lEws of:Uie Carporalion; atid (6):s8id aythorization hes not beeo modificd, amendedror rescinded,

¥
and continues infull forcc-and .eAect ns of the Udte hiereof.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF,.I Ribve hérédnto set iy Hand as the Glerk/Secretary/Officer of the gorporuiion, ihig

_.S_uayor;ﬁqm:__. 2620 .

STATE.OF , New Hampshire
‘COUNTY.OF _ChiesHice
L2020 , befareme;” e :
— whp péknowledged

‘Of hig. 8 deyof ___Scpiember
Kevm Wumgp_
+ 8 cofpoFdLgh

the: undersigned Officér. petssnally appcated
herfimsol to be. the:___Boped’ Qh!!ﬂ?&"“: yn of Qi
_being nuthmz.ed 10 do 10, cx.ctutcd thé Toregbing

‘fand thai shithe'as such _gfficer
mstrumtnl for the purposes’ lhercln contsined.

NWITNESS WHEREGF, ) hereuntp-se1 ehy hangd aind official sca),

Clerd/Secrerary/Officer

,wmulmm,,
%,

DY bea 5\\\ W
‘ Yy ,ﬁﬁ'm‘?“““\\\ )
' : F-ﬁh\v



H

GERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

QAT pReOTIYYYT
0070

TWIS CERTIRCATE. IS ISSUED. AS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT'AEFIRMATIVELY :Q
BSLOW. 1103 CERMAICATE OF INSURANGE QOES: NOT. C
REPRESENTATIVE-OR PRODUCER-AND THE CERTIAICATE WOLDER

A MATTER OF-INFORMATION ONLY .AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS  UPON THE CERTINCATE KOLDER, 105
“OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER.THE:COVERAGE AFFORDED” BY: THE POLICIES
GE QOES: NOT, CONSTITYTE' A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE L3SUING! iNSURER(3), AUTHORIZED'

the'tarivis s hg congitions.of the palicy, cartalh policles'may-rquir sry
candfiéats holde/ In lieu Ol.svch chdomeorivientli). .-

IMPORTANT: if tw' cortificats holdes b an AORITIONAL INBURED, the-policy(les)

st be 4ndorsed. |f BUGAGGATION 18 WATVED, oubject 0,
. A:matamant-on.thiy cart/ficats'does nol confer. rights to the-

m
g%ﬂwm insursncn ; ...m_z”-‘ — ”’u T
Kiene NH 03431 ; Cartaadminfician monicmen com
) ¥ P
SOUTHMEETITRME O : -
BmRsian CoMmuITy Seivces T B £
PO-Bax 803 <
Koeie NH 03434 | mtiinga p;
| poumIn g ;

: I

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE'NUMBER:1268010304. . REWVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE MAY: BE ISSUED 'OR MAY: PERTADY "THE INSURANCE.ALF

TiS:15 YO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCT USTED BELOW HAVE,
INDICATED: ROTVATHSTAMDING AMY REQLRAEMENT, YERM 'OA'CONDIMON OF

BEEN LSSUED YO THE MIURED MAMED-ADQVE, FOR. THE FOUCY PERIOD
ANY' CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT-WITHRESRECT 1D WHICH THIS

JO AL THE TEAMS,

ROED BY THE POLICIES' DESCRIBED WEREIN IS SUBJECT
EXCLUTEIONS'AND COMDITIONS OF - $LUCH POLICIE S LRITS SHOWM MAY HAVE 6£E I REOUCED B mn.uuﬁ. L
. .  TYPE OF DrSuBtANCE POLICY prseBOn Al | TS Ty
I a [ X [comerons Gexthas ussmry ™1 ) wnem | A | oo GocnDRE .. [t edh .
| clasiiunne @W | PP Falpcrurenin: b o0 o)
|| wrl) o (ary om AAYY. ) ‘
o= reRioel ioati sl | vidmoin o
ACORIGATE \Sef! APELEY PER CpEnaicoifouti _ |siemeth
racy I 5% C]wq PhbouCTy - cEeos apd |33.655m ,
L |, lgew : 4 o A L
A, | AVTONDERE LA ELITY Foud LN W00 annnen —— ] ..‘m
(%) arepurrq BOTR.Y AT P gy | § X
j [ g | srtolnfD ol { BOOR Y HeARY widcdionn) 4,
oo avtas: | X ] orgeieD Btk g S Y
;mmm gs Lpaiecien - : .
-~ Luﬂ:ﬁu:un [ X J:0coum = e | RN, | pacx ocoumpacs T
(CACERS LA CAAMIAADY Japomeoare : 8 L o oy
ool X [} 2 = .
- e e - vy — et - 1
¢ A (S ITVERT. UARILITY vin . e lm—[ ]ﬂ“’ I
i secmmermaneioTome: (i e
» Jioensmery nEg Bi. DRSBASE - BA'LagM OrvE R 9 duh g0
AR ger o pas how pts £1_Dtass | soucy unert | sesnens
1
ST 5 S TS YA R [V DL R0 T R Mt Veenin. ey P et & s e
“Workeri Cornperisation’ L. o pffy-107-the SLiD ot NH
Al Offcars #ra ctoded T
CERNFICATE HOLOER CANCELLATION )
SHOULD ANY OF TRE ADOVE (ESCRIBED ra.ndts.ne CANCELLED'DEEOAE’
. . TMHE EXPRATION DATE TKEREOS: FOMECE wal ‘bd uwo o
Siste of New Hempshla ACCORDANCE WiITH THE POLICY PAOM 0N,
Qgce of Stnlegic nitotives: ) _
Johnsoh Mab - "
lo?P!cu-'q'tlSlhct : Mﬂﬂlmﬂlfﬂ j
Caricord NF 033018501 . %W(__QC_
R ]
© 198¢8-1018 ACORD CORPORATION, AUfights roderved.
ACORD 25{2014701)

The:ACORD ngme:and.lopo ifevedistared manks of ACORO
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McDonel
NICE/QNNE
& Roberts

ARSI
To the Boarg ol Directors of g . CFEETIRED PILK MITUNTANTS
Southwestern Communily Services, Inc.. - - WILJERONU + NUAM CONTNY
Keene, New Hampshire ' DR o

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS:.RERORT,

e =

ihe. ElnancialSistements: .

We have sudiled the accompanying consolidated financia) statemenis of Southwestern .
Communily Services, Inc. (@ New Hampshire nonprofit corporalion) and related companies,
which comprise the consolideted statements of financial posilion as of May 31, 2019 and 2018,
and the related consolidaled statemants of cash flows, funclional expenses, and notes to Lhe
consolidated financial stetements for Lhe years then ended, and Ihe relaled consolidated

statemaent of activilies for the year ended May 31, 2019.

Mansgenient's.Responslbliity 167 the:Fiiianélal S{atements,

‘Manageman! s responsible_ for he preparation and-fair presentation of these consofidated
financial statemenls In accordance with accounting pringiples generally accepled in the United
Statas of America; Inls Includes the design, implomentation, and maintenance of intemat
control rafevant to the preparation and falr presentation of consoldated financial stalements
that are free from malerial misslatement, whether due to fraud of error. .

.

GAIOrE ReSHORSILIN

.

" Our responsibillty is to express an oplalon on these consalidated financial slatements based

on our. audils, We conducted our budils In accordance with -guditlng standards generally

. accepled In the United States of America and the slandards appliceble to flnancial audile

conlained in Government Audiling Standards, issued by the Complrollér General of the Uniled
States. Those standards require that wa plen and perform the audits to obtain reasonsble
gssurance aboul whether the consolidated financial stalemenls ere free from materal

misstatemnent.

An audil Involves perorming procedures (o obleln sudil evidence sbout the amounis ang.
disclosures in the consolldated financlal statemants. The procedures selecled depend on ihe

suditars’ judgmenl, including: the. assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

consalidaled fnancial stalemenits, whelhar due lo fraud or erur. In making those risk

assessments, the auditor considers Inlemal control relevant ta the enlity's preparalion end fair

presentation of the consolidated financlal slatements In order to dasign audit procedures thal

are appropriate in lhe circumstances, but not for the purpose of axprossing an oplnion on the -
effecliveness of the entlty's Internal conlrol. Accordingly, we express no such opinlon, An sudit

also includes evalualing the approprialeness of accounting policles used snd the

reasonsbleness of signlficant accounling ‘estimales made by management, as wall as

evaluating the overall prasentalion of the consolidated financial stalements.

We belisve (hal Ihe audit evidence we have oblained is sufficienl and appropriale lo provide 8
basls for our audit opinion.”

1
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Leone,
- McDonnell
& Roberts

To the Board ol Directors of (YT MM ATUNTANTS

Southwéstern Community Services, Inc., ) ‘ VO muﬁm

Keane, New Hampshire . STRATHAY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORY

Reporion:the Financial Statements ‘

We have audiied the accompsnying consolidated linancial sialements of Southwestern Y
Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) and related companies,
which comprise (ha consolidaled statements of fimancial position as of May 31, 2019 and 2018,
and the related consolidaled slatements of cash flows, functlonal expenses, and noles to the
consolidated financial stalements for the years ihen ended, and the related consolidated
statement of activities for the year ended May 31, 2019.

‘Maonsgement's Resbons/blifty-for'the Fljsnclal Stafements.

Managemenl is responsible for the preparstion and fair presentation of these consolideled
financlal statements In accordance with accounling principles generslly sccepted in the United
States of America; this Includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of intemnal
control relevant to the preparalion and falr presentation of consolidated financlal statements
that-are free from malerial misslatement, whether due to fraud or error. '

‘Aud' b-m - r T L) g " 2 l
Our responaibility Is to express an aplnion on these consolidated financial stslements based

on our audils. We conducted our audlls in accordance with audillng . standards generally
accepled in the United Stales of America and the standard$ applicable to financial audils
contained [n Government Audiling Stendards, issued by the Complirallér General of the United
Slatas. Those slandards require that we plan and perferm the eudits to oblaln reasonsble
assurance aboul whether ‘the consolidated fnancial statemenls ere free from. maleral

misslatemant,

An audlt involves performing procedures (o oblain audil evidence about the amounis and
disclosures in the consolldated financial statements. The procedures selecled depend on the
audltors' Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of malensl misstatement of the
cansolidated financial slatements, whether due lo fraud or error. In making thosa risk
assessments, the auditor considers intemal conlrol relevant to the entity’s préparation snd falr
prasentstion-of Lhe consolidated financlal slatemants In order 1o design audit procedures thal
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
aHectiveness of the entily’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audil
also includes évaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of signllicant accounling estimates made by managemeni, as well as
evelusling the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe hat the audil evidence we-have oblained is sdl‘ﬁcienl and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audil opinion. _ B :



Splnion : : '
Inour opinion, the consolidated financial statements referrad to above present faldy, In all
material respects, the financial position of Southwesterm Community Services, inc. and related
companies as of May 31, 2018 and 2018, and the changes In lheir net assels and thelr cash
fliows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In

the Unlted States of America. - :

epori on Spmisrzed Comparativéinfornaton, . -

We have previously eudited Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and relaled companies’
2018 financlal siatements, end we expressed an unmodified sudit opinlon on those audlled
financla! stetements in our regort dated Septamber 17, 2018. In our opinlon, the summarized
comparative Information presented hereln as of end for the year ended May 31. 2018, Is
conslstent, In afl material respects, with the audited financlal stalements from which it has been

dortved. o
Othar.{nformation. | :
lidated financial

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming .an opinion on the conso

statements as 8 whole. The accompanying schedules of expendilures of faderal awards, as

required by Title 2 U.S. Code ‘of Feders! Raguistions (CFR) Part 200, Unlform Adnministrative

Requirements, Cost Principlés, end Audit Requirsmsnts for Fedsrs! Awards, and the

Schedules of Funclonal Revenues and Expenses, are presented for purposes of additonal

analysis and are not a required part of the consalidated financial statements. Such Information

Is the responsiblilly of management and was dervad from and reiatas directly to the underying

accounting and other records used to prepare the consoclidated financlal staléments. The

information has been subjected to the augiting procedures applied In the audit of the’
consolidated financial statements and cerain additional procadures, including comparing and
reconclling such Information directly to the undedying accounling and other recorde uséd to
prépare tha consclidated .finenclal’ statements or'to the consolideted financlal statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with audiing standards generelly
acceptad In the Unlled Stetes of Amsarica. Inour opinlon, the Information Is faidy &lated, In all
material réspects, In relstion to.the consolidated financlal statemsnts s 8 whole. :

Othor-Heporting Requlred by Govemnment Auditing Stendards

In accordance with Govemmen! Auditing Standards, we have 8lso issued our report dated
November 5, 2019, ¢nh our éor)slderatlon of Southwestem Community Services, inc’s intamal
control over financlal reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certaln provisions of
jaws, fegulations, contracls, and grant agresments and other matters. The purpose of Lhat
report 1 to describe the scope of our testing of internal contro! over finencial reporting and
compliance and the results of.that testing, and nol to provide an opinlon on Intemat control
over financlal ceporling or on compliance. That report Is an [ntegral part of an sudit parformed
In sccordance with Government Audiling Stendards In considering Southwestem Community
Sarvicas, Inc.'s intemal control-over finenciat reporting and compliance.

Law, e Lamnadl i b
foftssiond Qss0iiAm

November 5, 2018
Wolleboro, New Hampshire



CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash &nd cash aquivelents
Acoounts recatvablo
Prepald axponses
Ngtss rooaivebia
Interoil roceivalis

Total asrort ascols

PROPERTY
Land and budings )
Vohicies ond eqiutpmant
Fumilture and fbduras
Volal propesty

Loss accumutsied deprodsion
" Propanty. net

OTHER ASSETS
lnwvestment in related pertes
Owvo {rom rototed pertioy

Cath oeomw and reseve funds

Socourily deposits
Othes oxsals

Tota! other assels

.Tou! a3sols

CURRENT UABIUTIES
+ Accounis paysble

Aocruod oxpansss .
Ancrued payroll end poyrall taxos
Quwr asrent Mabildse
Refundabls edvances
tnterosf peysbla
Curront porton 4f fong lerm dabt

Tolsl current Ilg_bmu_c
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term dodl. loss ouront porUon shown above

Tolnl Nabiites
NET ASSETS
wiihout donor reelricUons
With donor resticlons
Total net assels

Tota! Sabiiiics end not assels

Sea Nolos (o Censolldated Financlal Statornents

-4 nie
$ 882187 3 1,088,805
. 3,245,828 1050022
51,722 35.01¢
112,000 112,000

10,188,701 14,438,170

554879 . $49.305
Im‘ . mmu
“"19.984,058 T 15.031100

AT s

198,728 " 38,708
£0.102 188,523
849334 - 517,853
62,098 . 51.008

1,110,544 fAT 482

‘s 16631867 5 9333200y

$ I3 $ 124,085

119,820 © 200179
233900 250,692
138740 135,573
180,004 To183.90
48,547 -
227221 . ..._216,438

- 1,341,835 1,128,807

. BUSS4as D28
10,428,680 0:400,680

4922674 3,787,422
J82018. .. 349

5108587 3932113
15593607  F 13032093




ACELINCAND REVATED
. COMSOLIDATED BTATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2010
Wahout Donor  Wlih Donor 2049 " 1018
REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT . . S
Govarnman! conbpty $ 10872702 6 ra 310672702 §.11.055083
Program aarvice fres 2,445,405 b5 2,489,403 1,883 188
Rerts! hoome 35,380 w 205,380 801,642
Oeviioper 16s lncome ' - . o 50,000
Suppen . 326,534 125433 45239 . B0R.229
Spotannhly T0.690 i 70,80) 108,204
inisrest income RALS o 7.45) 8.450
Forgivoness of datd 380,849 353,049 73,071
Mbcctonsous 130,607 120,897, ¥00,772
. In-itnd conuftumions _ 241,499 . .ZL\.M. e 181,652
Tolsl reveruas g oLher suppon 15,300,133 12580 18,434,069 14,736,002
NET ASSET8 RELEASED FROM ‘
REGTRICTIONS E N | 1L R =
Tolsl revenues, other wopon, end v e, ey S
el esaots rosesad from restictions ~AE0YEE a2 _dfelRad . aqmepe
EXPENSES
Program ssivicas
Home encrgy progrenma . 3.230.483 - LR LK 4,847 204
Educetion end mauilon 2.630.8%0 - 205048 2830162
Homolgls progrenss 1,694,072 . 1,984,872 217248
Haing sanvices , 2,319,885 - 2,319,885 2048214
Econamic daveXipmont §rvcos 721,570 129,370 726,119
Otver piograms . 20 894,028, 804088 048301
Tos! orogram servicos 13,820,400 13820408 13071488
Bupporing sctivilies )
Mgregsment end gencrs) 1,000,408 ] 1,880,408, 4746700 °
Toul oxpansos : 18700941 d _3700817  _ 13,021,968

CHANGES IN NET ASEETD BEFORE ) .

* L0SS OH BALE QF PROPERTY (213,088) 38228 (274,843} (184.113)
LOSE ON BALE OF PROPERTY (8.481) w (8.481) (4.603)
GAIN (LOSH) ON INVESTMENT IN UMITED PAATNERSHIPY. 19118 e LI R L 1oy
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (301,433 38228 © {263.208) (188'044)
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR, 3,787,421 144,80 3812313 3301012
NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM L

UIMITED PARTHERBHIP 2el438,802 s 1,438,082 0285
NET AESETH, END OF YEAR 3 $. 4072871 $ 5,105,587 .3 3043

Soe Notat 1o Consolldalad Flnancisl Statements
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. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

- Change la nat cxaots
Adpimanis io moondo changes In nol essets b
nel cosh from oporsling ocivities:
Ospraciation end omorCzation
Lass on sale of property
(Gdﬂ)louonhwmnmm&nmmm
. Forpivoness of dotil
(tnorease) cecraase [n oasete
Accounis roccivihin
Prepsid cxpensas
Inlerus! rocetvitlo
Due from rotatad parties
Seoutly deposita
Increeso (decrosso) in abves:
Accourts peyabio
Ascruod axpenyes
mﬁmwmm
Other currend Eabllltfes
Refundsble odvinces

Intarest payedle
NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIOED BY DPERATING ACTIVITIES

CATH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(ines0388) docTaesd b0 gecrow funds
Proceeds o eslg g‘l‘ propadty
Purchsso of property,

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED (N) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
B L]

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Procoods from long tem detx
_ Ropoyment of long tam dalt -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTMUEB
NETY (UECRFASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF VEAR
CASH TRANSFERRED FROM LIMITED PARTNERSKIP -

CASH AND CAGH EQUIVALENTG, END OF YEAR

80¢ Notes to Consolldated Flaancls! Sialementa

1 018

$ (203.208) §  (288.044)

580,318 487920

0401 4503

{18.110) 168
{380,840} 8.0y |

(185.004) 205,189
5,509 (3.429)

5 {4.480)

44240 88,149
6,151 (2.823)
145,020 ‘(53.220)
(100.003) 138,680)
(16.7%2) 0.85) -
(X[ {13.125)
(1203 {44,414)

49 647 .

[152,873) 205,628

(33.588) 6,848
215,000 e
(871D Lo 1y

f o IR . {138:645).

: 40,048 76,143
- {160029) ,_ {112812)

1

(110,881). [38,480),

(230,038) 115212

1,088,895 947,175

L 262% 20608

§_. 8a2187. $  10as608



CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
Aeipap ittt et

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CABH FLOW INFORNATION
Cuhpmdurlm e yaar for intorest

SUPPLEMEHTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING
AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

'I’mmmu e33eis trom nowty conaobdated LP:

* Prapald expondss .

Lend and buliings
Fumiiro ond Rehuros

Cash saiyow and rasarve funda
Socaurly deposls
Tonat rorater of casste from newly consofidatad LP

Trenstor of RebTUas (rom nowly conaclideled LP:
Accounds peysbis

Twlmﬂudmammmmw
Tolsl parinory’ capul lrum nowly amameP
Parinars’ coplinl previously recorded as Investment In roisiod partios

Tole! trangfor of partnors’ cepltal from newly consalidatod LP

So¢ Notes to Congolidatod Ainancle! Siztomants

s 2018
§ 203408, 8wy
$ (any s (12,328}
{2.873.335) (854,504)
{188.237) (98.318)
{267.913) 0 )
{18.,151) :(g: 1«?1;
$ (2o17AK).  § (raTerar),
$ nem ¢ 10910
20,347 11199
86.121 s
3,392,078 304:073
3_Lssesen 5. Repss
§ 3T ARV
Y. L)
5. 1438687 5 623288

Lt e e I
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NOTE 1

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY:31,i2019.AND 2018;

}

CEOUNTING POLICIES:

GREANIZATION ANO SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

Oene;ai i
Southwestern Communlly Services, Inc. {ihe Organizalion) Is 8 New Hampshlre
nonprofit corporation formed as an umbrella corporation {hat offers -an amay of
services to (he elderty. disabled, and low4ncome households In the Cheshire and
Sullivan countles of New Hampshire. Varlous programs provide assistance In the
ereas of education, chlld development, employment, energy and Its conservation,
houging, ‘and homelessnass prevention. Services are ‘provided through
Southwesiem Community Semvices, Inc., and [ls related corporations, SCS
Mapagement Comgration, SCS Houslng, Inc., SCS Development Comoration,
SC$ Housing Development, Inc., end various limited partnerships, as dasgcribéd
below. The Organization is commitied to providing respectful support service and
assising IndMduals end famllies In echleving sell-sufficiency by helping them
overcome the causes of poverty. The primary source of revenues is derved from
govemmantal contracts.

pclpleB:of Cofidolidation ' : ;

The consolidated financld) statements Include the accounts of ‘Soulhwestem
Community Services, Inc. and the following entitles as Southwestam Gommunity
Searvices, Inc. has both &n ‘economic Intarest and control of the entities through a
majorly voting Interest In thelr goveming board. Al significant Intarcompany
items and transactions have been eliminated from the basic consolidated
financial statémeants. . '

« SCS Managemani Comaration
= SCSHousling, Inc.
SCS Developmeant Corporation.
s« SCS Housing Davelopment, Inc.
Drewsville Carrege House Assoclates, Limited Parinership (Drewsvills)
Jaffrey Housing Assoclates, Limlled Partnership {Jaffrey) - Sold 2/1119
Troy Senlor Mousing Associstes, Limlled Partnership {Troy Senlor)
Keene East Side Sentor Housing Assoclates, Limited Partnership (Keene
Egst Side) ' ) o
» .Winchaster Senlor Housing Assoclstes, Limlited Parnership (Winchester)
. Carisolidstion bagan 8/16/17 o o=
-« Swanzey Township Housing Assoclates, Limited Parinarship (Swanzey)
Consolidation baegan 6/30/18
-4 Snow Broak Maadow Viliage Housing Assoclates, Limiled Partnarship
{Snow Brook) Consolidation began $/01/18

» =

. -
»



‘Basfs:of Accoprling

The oonso[hdated financlal statements of Southwestern Community Sarvices, Inc.
and related companles have bean prepared ullizing the accrual basls of
accounling In accordance with generally accepled accounting principlas.

Basls of Prasenlaliog

The financis! stalements of the Organlzation have baen prepared In accordance -

with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require
the Organization to raport Informallon regarding Ats financlal paositlon and
aclivities according to the following nat assel ¢lassifications. The classes of nel
gssetls are delemined by the presence or sbsence of donor-lrnposed
resmchons

¢ . Net assets thal am not sublect to
donor-lmposed resticlions ‘and may be expended for any purpose In
performing the primary objectives of the Omanization. These net assels
may be usad at the discretion of the Organlzaﬂon's Board of Directors.

.. Nal assets subject to s!lpulauons
lmposod by donors and graniors. Some donor rasutcuons are temporary In
nefure; those residctions will be met by actions of the Omganization or by
passage of time. Qther donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whersby
the donor has stlpulated the funds be maintalned In perpelulty.

As of May 31, 2010 and 2018, the Omanization had ne! aesals without donor
restrictions angd wnh dunor rasirctions.

‘The finencla! statements include certain prior-year summarized compérat!ve

information in fotal but not by net asset class.. Such Information does not Inciude
sufficiant detall to constitute a presentation In conformity with generally accapted
accounting principlas. - Accordingly, such Information “should be read
conjunction wilh the Organization’s financlal stetemants for the year ended May
31, 2018 from which the summarized Information was derived.

Refunddble Advances

The Omgenizatioh records grant and contract revenue as refundable advances unti
it 1s expended for the pumpose ol the grent or contract, at which time ft Is
recognized as revenue. ‘

The Ohéa':ﬂz'atioﬁ records varlous types of In-kind suppor Including professional
services end matarlals. Contributed professional services are recognized if the

- service received, croatas or enhances tong-lived assels or requires Speciallzed

skili, are provided by Individuals possassing those skills. and would typlcally need

to be purchased K not provided by donatlon. Contributions of tangible. assels are

recognized et fair value when necelved

10



Estimatos d

The presentation of financial stalements in conformity with generally accepled
accounting principlaa requires management {6 make eslimates and assumplions
that affect the reported smounts of assels and llsblilllas and disclosure of
contingent essels and liabllities at the date of the financial stalements and tha
reporied amounts of revanues and expenses during (he reporting perod. Actual
resuits could differ from those eslimates.

Far purposen ol thi 'statermant of cash Nows, the Qrganization conslders afl liquld
Investmentis purchased with odginal malurities of thras months ot lass to ba cash
equtvalenls

ccounts Recolvable
Accounts receivable are slated at the amount management expects 1o collect

from balances outstanding at year end. Balanoces Lha!l ere etill autstanding after
managemen! has usad reasonable collaction efforts are written off through &
charge to the valuation sllowance and & cradit to accounts recelvable. The
sllawancs for uncollectible accounts was astimated to be zero et May 31, 2019
and 2018. The Omganization has no pollcy for charglng Interest on overdue

gccounts.

otes Receivable
The Organizatlon has two nolas recetvabls from an unrelated third party. The
notes recelvaples are statad at the amount that Is expaectad to be collecled at
year end. Interest |5 accryed al a rete of 4% annually. The balance of the
notes recelvable and related Interest recelvable was 3112 000 and $45,547,

respectively, st May 31, 2019 and2018

The™ Organlzation i5. operatad In & heavlly ‘ragulated environmen!. The
operations of the Organlzation aré subjact to the adminlistrative directives, rules
and regulations of federal, stete and [ocal regulatary egencles. Such
egministrative directivas, rules and regulations are subjpct to change by an act
of Congress or Legisiature. Such changes may occur with little notice or

Insdequete funding to pay  for the related ~cosl, Including the additional,

.administrative burden, to comply with a change. For the years ended May 31,

2019 and 2018, approximatsly 68% and T75%, racpeciively, of the-

Organization's totel revenue was recelved from govemment agencies. The
fulure nature of the arganization s dapendent upon continued support from the

govemment.

Concenptration of Credit Ris

The Organization malntains its cash accounts In savera! financlal institutions,
which at limes may exceed foderglly Insured limits. The Organization has not
experienced any losses In such accounts and befiaves It Is not exposed 1o any
significant risk with respsct to these accounts.

11
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Prqperty_agd Depreclation
Purchased property and equipmant are staled el cos at the date of acquisition

or at fair value al the date of receipt In the case of donaled properly. The .

Orgenization generally capltalizes and depreciates all assels with a cost greater
than $5.000 and an expected lhfe greater than one year. Depraclalion is
provided for using the stralght-line method In amounts designed to amortize the
cosl of the assels over their egtimated useful lives 8s follows:

Buildings and Improvements 10 - 40 Years
Vehicles and equipment S5-10 Years

Furniture and flxtures . t 7 Years

The use of cerlaln assels Is spacified under the terms of grants racelved from
agencies of the fadera! govemmant, Thess grants also place liens on cartaln
assels and Impose resldclions on the use of funds recelved from the disposition
of the property. Depreciation expense for the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018
totaled $580,115 and $467,020. raspectively.

Advortising
The Omanlzation expenges adverlsing cosls as Incurred.

talvad from- condifonél :grants -and; contracts :recelved for speclﬂ(;:
purpqsas'are ganpmlty_moognlzsd a$ Inoomeito {ha:extent: maf'm!atedfexpansas

‘and* conditions:.ame ;Incumed: or. ‘met.. Condillonnl igrants: -recelved’ d{i’r ‘o the,

.conditions -being: metiare:repoitediasirelundable:advarces: Contribidlon Bf-cash.
and other absels are repartad as with donor restrctions if they are received with
donor imposed stipulations that [imil the use of the donated asssets, However, If @
restriction {s fulfilled In the same period In which the contributlon Is racalved the
Organization reports the support as without donor restrictions.

Incame. Taxes

_Southwastern’ Community Semvices, Inc. end SCS Managament Corporatlon
ara exempt from Federal Income {axes under Sactlon 501(c)(3) of tha Internal
Revenue Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are exemp! from
Income tex on their exemp! funclion income. '

SCS Housing, Inc, SCS Development Corporation and SCS Housing
Bevalopment, Inc. are laxed as comporetions. SCS Housing Inc. has federal net
opereting loss camyforwards toteling $1.012:804 and $915,425 at May 31, 2019
and. 2018, raspectively. These loss canyforwards may be offast against future
taxable Income and, If not used, will begltn to expire In 2027. SCS Development
Corporation has federsl nat aparating loss carryforwards lotaling $579 and $607 at
May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. These loss camyforwards may be offsat
sgainst future taxeble income and, if not usad, will begln to explre in 2022.

12
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follows as of May 31, 2018 and 2018:

The tax effects of the camyforwards as related to deferred tax assels Is as

209 2018
Tox benefit from foss carryforwards’ $212,768  $137,408
Valualion allowance (212,768)  (137.408)
.Deferred tax agsel e & i

Orewsvilte, Jaffrey, Tray Seonlor, Winchester, Keene East Side, Swanzay, and
Snow Brook are taxed 83 parinerships, Faderal incoma taxes are not payable by,
or provided for these enlilles. Eamings and jossas are Included in the partners’
faderal Income tax' retums based on iheir share of parinership eamings.
Partnerships are required to flle Income tax relums with the State of New
Hampshire end pay an Incorme tax st the state’s statutory rate. ;

Accaunting Standard Codlification No. 740, *Accounting for Income Taxes,”
established the “‘minlmum threshold for recognizing, and & system for
measuring, the benefils of tax relum positions In financial etatements.
Managemsnt has analyzed the Organization’s tax position’ laken on lts income

_ tax retums for ll open years (tax years ending May 31, 2017 ~ 2018), and has

conduded thal no addilional provision for Income texes Is necessary In the
Organization's financial statements. ' .

rValue.of Einancial instruments

FASB ASC Topic NO. 820-10. Financtal Instruments, provides a deflnition of falr
. value which focuses on an exit price rether than an entry price, eslablishes 8

framework [n generally accepted eccounting principles for measuring falr value

which emphasizes that falr valua Is & market-based measurement, notl.an .

ehtity-spaclfic measurement, and requires expanded distlosures about falr
velué ‘messurements. In accordance with ASC 820-10, the Organization may
use valuation tachniques consistent with markel, income and cost approaches
to measure fali velue. As & basls for considering market participant
assumptions In falr valus measurements, Topic 820-10 establishes a falr valug
hiererchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in.measufing falr values. The
hierarchy glves the highest priorly to Level 1 measurements and the lowast

priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of the falr value hierarchy

under ASC Topic 820-10 are described as follows:

Love! 1 - Inputs o the valuation methodotogy are quoted pricas available
active markets far identical investments 8s of the reporting date.

Levo! 2 - Inputs to the valuatlon methodology are other than quoled markat
.prices in aclive markets, which are either directly or indlrectly observable gs
of the reporting date, and feir value can be determined through the use of
models or olher valustion melhodologies.

1
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NOTE 2

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation msethodology are unobsarvabla inputs In
sttuations whera (here is littia or no markot aclivity for the asset or liability
and the reporting enlily makes estimates and assumptions related lo the
pricing of the asset or liablifly Including agsumplions regarding risk.

The carrylng amount of cash, accounts recelvables, prepaid expanses, accounls
payable, accrued expenses. end refundable advances approximates falr value:
because of the shor matunty of those Instruments.

New:AccountinpPronouncemeqt
'On Augus!' 18,2016, FASB lasued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic

958) Presontation of Financle! Sistemants of Nol-for-Profit Enlitles. The update

.addrasses the complexily end understandebli!ty of nat asset classification,

deficiendes in information aboul llquidity and availabllity of resources, and the
{ack of consistancy In the type of informalion . provided about expenses and

: investment retum. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of these

slatements accordingly. The ASU has been appiled retrospeclively to all periods
presenled

Funcglgn_a_l A‘1Iocatlon ofif Expanses

The costs of providing the varlous progrems and ather aclivities have been
summarized on a functional basls. Natural expenses are defined by thelr nature,
such ag salanies, rent, suppllgs, elc. Funclional expenses are classifed by the
type of aclivity for which expenses ere incumed, such as manegement and
general and direct program costs. Expanses are .allocated by function using a
reasongble end consisient spproach thal is primarily based on function and use.
The costs of providing certaln program and 5upporllng services have been
dirsclly charged.

The Organization submnls an indirect cost rale proposal for the pald lesve, fringe
benefits and other Indirect costs lo the U.S. Department of Health and Human
services. The indirect cost rale Is 11.98% effeclive from Juns 1, 2017 through
May 31, 2020.

‘BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Orgenization hes a $250,000 revolving.line of credit agreament with a bank.
Interast Is due monthly and’ls steled at the Wall Street Jouma! Prime Rate. The
line Is secured by all the Omganization's assets. As of May 31, 2018 and. 2018,
tha Interest rate was 5.50% and 4.75%, respectively. Thera was no outslanding
balance at May 31, 2016 and 2018. ’
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NOTE 3

LONG TERM DEBY

The long term debt at May 31, 2018 end 2018 consisted of Lhe foilowing:

1% mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing

in monthly installments for princlpal and interest of
$891 through August 2032, The nole-is secured
by renl estate of tha Organization (NKHFA, 86
Main Street).

Non-interast beafing mortgégo payabls to

i Communily Devalopmen!. Finance Authorly, in

quartedy principal paymenls based on ‘oparaling
income formula applled to affordable housing
porifon of the spedified real estale. Tho nots Is

" gacured by raal sstate f the Organization (COFA,

98 Maln Street). -

55% note payable to & bank In Monihly
Installmants for principal and inlerest ol $978
through March 2021. The nole Is sacured by real
estale of the Omganization (Peopia's Unlted Bank

Ashuslot).

Non-nlerest bearing mortgege payable to' New
Hampshire Housing. Peyment (s deferred for 30
years, through September 2031, or untll projact is
sold or refinanced. The note Is éscured by real

. ‘estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 17 Pear).

Non-interast bearing mongage payable to New
Hampshira Houslng. Paymseni ts deferrad for 30
yoars, through July 2032, unless there |s surplus
cash from which to make & paymeni, or unift

..project Is sold or refinanced. The note Is escurad

by real estats of the Organlzatlon (NHHFA 4143
Ceantral}.

4.25% morigage payable lo a bank In monthly
instaliments (or principal and intersst of $1,875
through December 2018, with o belloon payment
that was due January 2017. The nole was
amended during the ypar ended May 31, 2019 and
Is now due Dacembar 2026. Under the
amendmenl; interest rate Is 4.94% and monthly

Instailments for ‘principal and Interast are §1,857 -

The note Is secured by real sstate of the
Qrgenizetion (People’s United Bank, Mileslones).

15
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145,047

31.588

20672

244,505

376,363

146,515

2018

$ 154,832

32,147

31143

‘244 505

376,363
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4.375% nole payable 10 Rursl Hoﬁslng Servico in
monthly instaliments for princlpal end Interest of

$11,050 through May 2049. The note is secured .

by real estate of the Organization (TD Bank,
Keeane Office).

Nor-interest bearing note payable to Cheshire
County In New Hampshire. Payment is not
necessary unless Qrganization defaults on
contract. The nole Is secured by real estate of the
Orgenization {COBG, Keane Office).

4% note payable to a development company, in
annual Interest Instaliments only through March
2015 at which ime a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was dug. The remalning
balance is stil) autstanding et May 31, 2016 and Is
classified as cumeni. Tha note is secured by real
estale of the - Omganlzation (MEDC, Keens
Office/Communlty Way). ;

4% nols payable to a devalopment company, In
annugl inlerest inslaliments only through March
2015 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was dua. The remaining

balence is still outstending at May 31; 2018.and Is
classiflad as current. The note Is secured by real”

estate of the Otganizetion (MEDC, Keene
Office/Communlty- Way). '

Note payable to a'bank in monlhly instaliments for
principal and interest of $2,462 including Interest
through May 2039. interost is adjusted every five
years based on remsining principal belance and
“Classic Advaniage Rate” provided by Federal

.Home Loan Bank of Bosion which resulled In an

Interest rate of 4.87% and 4.07% at May 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively. The nole is securad by
rog) estate of the Organization (TD Bank, Keene

~ Offica/Community Way).

5.10% nole paysble to & 'bank In monthly

instaliments for prnclpal and interest of $689 -

(hrough May 2021, The note Is secured by real
estata of the Organization (TD Bank, 45 Central
Streat). .
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Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Davelopmenl. No payment Is due end beglnning in
Janvary 2015 10% of tha note Is forgiven each
year providing thé property ts used for low Incoma
housing through Januery 2025. The note s
secured by resl estale of the Omganization (HUD,
Ashuelot).

Non-Interesl bearing note payabls to the Unlted
States Department of Mouslng and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the noté is forgiven each
year providing the property 15.used for low income

" housing through January 2025. The note is

secured by real estate of the Omganization {HUD,
112 Charestown Road).

Non-nterest besring nole peysbls to New
Hampshlre Housing In annua! payments in the
amount of 50% of -annval surplus cash (hrough
July 2042 st which time the remahing balance Is
dua. The nole is secured by resl estate of the
Ongammiu:m (NHHFA, Seccnd Chance).

Non-Interest bearing note payable 10 a county In
New Hampshire. No peymant s due and 5% of
the balance Is forglven each yeer through 2032
when the. remelning balance becames due. The
nota Is securad by real estate of the Organization
(COBG, Second Chanca). '

/ : .
0.09% note payable {0 a finance company In

monthly Installments for principal end Interest of
$852 through June 2018. The note Is secured by &
vehicle (TCF, Ecaonoline Ven).

5.54% note: payébié 1o 8 fitidnce compady in

.monthly instailmenis: for principat'and Interest of

$543 through August 2022, The nole Is securad by
a vahicle (Ally, Econoline Van).
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Jefiray - 30-year deferred nole payable 1o the
Town of Jaffrey, New Hampshire. Payment of
principal and accrued interest 8t 1% ware deferred
until the note matures in June 2027. The nole was
secured by land and bulMdings. The balance

included cumulative accrued Inlerest -of $53,651

(CDBG). Jafirey was sold during the year snded
Mey 31, 2018 and the balance was fargiven.

Jaffrey - 6% note payable to a bank in monthly
Instaliments for prncipel end Interest of $485
. through August 2027. The note was secured by
tand and bullidings (TD Bank). Jafirey was sold
during the year ended May 31 2019 and (his note
was pald In full,

Troy Senfor --Non-Interast bearing note payable to
a oounly In New Hampshire. Paymenis are
deferrad uniil the note matures In Juna 2029. The
notae Is secured by real estate of the Organizatlon
(COBG).

Troy Senlor - Nondnterest bearing note payabla to

New Hampshire Housing Finance Authodty lo fund
enorgy officlency improvements through the

- Authortty's- Greener Homes Program. Payment is -

defemmod for 30 years, through Algust 2042. The
nole Is secured by real estale of the Organization
(NHHFA).

Keene East Side - Non- Interest bearing note
payable to a county In New Hampshire. Paymanta
are deferred untll the nole mastures In Oecember
2028. Tha note 15 secured by reel eslate of the
Organlzation (CDBG).

Keeno East Side - Non-Interest besdng note
payebla {0 New Hempshire Community
Developmen! Flingnce Authodty (COFA) to fund
anergy upgrades  and -cepilal Improvements.
Baginning in 2016, 10% of the nole (s forglven
asch year based on the rolling balance. The
moerigape may be relsased afler ten years In
January 2026. The note'ls secured by real estate
of the Organlzation (COFA).
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640,000

140,210

900,000
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303,651

41,009

650,000

140,210

800,000

178,472



Keene East Side - Nondnterest besring note
payeble to New Hampshire Housing to fund
energy efficlancy Improvemenls through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is

defamed for 30 years, through August 2042. The .

note ls secured by real eslate of the Organization
(NMHFA).

Swanzey - Non-recourse, 4.90% simple interest

“morgage note payable to the New Hampshire:

. Houelng (HOME), due September, 2033, principa!

and Interest payable at the sole discratlon of the
-{ender from the excess cash ol the bomower
determined by formuls, secured by the
Partnership's land and bulldings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mongage.

Swanzey - Non-recourse mortgage nota payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), dus
September 2043, -payable in monthly instaliments
of $1.698, Including Interas! at 2.35% secured by
the Parinership's land and bulldings, subject to low
Income housing use resldctions for the 40 year
term of the mornigage.
.-t A

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing, dus -July
2057, payeble In monthly Instalimants of $2,002
Including Interest at 4.35% secured by the
Partnership's fand and bulidings. subject to tow
‘Income housing use restrictions for the 30 yeer
. larm of the modtgage.

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, zero Interest

mortgege note payable to New - Hampshire
.Mousing (AHF), dus June 2034, principsl end
Interest payable at the sole discretion of the lender
(rom the axcess cash of the borrower delemined
by formule, secured by the Partnership’s land and

buildings, subject to kw Incoms housing use

restrictions for the 30 yaer term.ofl the mongage.-
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winchester - Non-recourse morgage note payable
to New Hampshlre Housing (AHF), due May 2032,

. payable in monthly installments of $370, including
interest al 2.00%, secured by the Parnership's
land and buildings, subject to low mcome housing
use restictions for the 30 year termm of tha
montgago note (NHHFA).

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero Interest bearing
montgage note payable lo New Hampshire
~ Housing (FAF), due May 2032, payable al the scle
discrelion of the lander from the excess cash of
the borrower determinad by formula. secured by
iha Partnerahlp’s 1land and bulldings, subject lo kow
income housing use restictions for the 30-year
term of the morigage note (NHHFA).

Winchestar - Non-recourse, zero Inleres! bearing,
direct subsldy AHP loan sacured by the
Partnership's land end bulldings, subject to low-
income housing resiriclions under the temms of the
AHP sgreement. In the evenl of a defeult under
the aforemeniloned agreamant, tha loan Is due
upon demend with Interesl accrued at a3 rate of

11.67% for the period the funds wera oulslanding

(Fedardl Home Loan Bank).

Total long-term debt bafore unamonized defamed
financlng costs

Unamortized deferred financing costs

- Less cument porllon due within one year

N
o
-
o

'50,436

92,058

9,332,609

- [18.943)

9,313,868
227,221

_.' . g d

N
=1
e
. -]

53.826

02,058

- 150000

8,490,421

8,480,421
—216438

The schedule of maturities of long term debi at May 31, 2018 Is as follows:

v Year Ending

May 31
2020
2021

2022
2023
2024

Thareafter

Total
20

"~ Amount

$ 2272
121,051
115,864
115,586
118,605
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NOTE 4

NOTES

NOTE & -

OPERATING LEASES _

The Organization ‘lsases facllitles, equipment and vehicles under non-
‘cancelable lease agreements al variows financial institutions. Lease periods
range from month to month to 2024. Monthly lease payments ranga from $60 to
$3,625. Lease expense for the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018 totated
$144,880 and $136,963 respectively. ’

Future minimum payments as of May 31,2018 on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ending
May 31 Amount

2020 $ 78745
2021 ' 21,877
2022 . _ 18,318
2023 o . 1,050
. 2024 , 720
Thereafter . 120
Totel . - §_420.630

ACCRUED COMPENSATED.BALANCES -
At May 31, 2019 and 2018, the Organization accrued & liabliity for future annual
leava lima thal its employses had eamed end vested In the emount of $131,864

and $130,140, respectively.

CONTINGENCIES

Soithwasiem Communlty Services, Inc. Is the 100% owner of SCS Housing,

inc. and SCS Houslng Development, inc. SCS Houslng, [nc. and SCS Housing
Development, Inc. are the general pariners of tan-imited partnerships formead to
develop low-Incoma housing projects through tha use of Low Income Housing
Tax Cradhs. Southwestem Community Services, In¢., SCS Houslng, Inc. and
SCS Housing Devetopment, Inc. have guaranteed repayment of llabllitles of
various partnarships totaling approximately $14,154,000 and $15,653.000 at
May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. .

Partnérship real estale with & cost basis of approximataly $35,631,000 and
$41,158,000 at May 31, 2018 and 2018, respectively, provides collaters! on
thase loans. :

21



NOTE ?

NOTE 8

The Organization recelvas funds under varous slete grants and from Fedeoral
sources.-Under the terms of these agreements, the Organization Is required to
use the funds within a ceraln peded and for purposes specified by the
governing laws and regulgtions. If costs were found not to have been Incurred
tn compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organlzation might be required
to repay the funds. .

No provistons have been made for this contingency because speclfic amounts,
If any, havs not bean determinad or assessed by govermment audHis as of May

31, 2019 and 2018, i«

RELATED:PARTY TRANSACTIONS,

‘During ‘the years ended May 31,2019 and 2018, SCS Housing, Inc. managed
tan Imited parnerehips. Managsmeni fees charged by SCS Housing, Inc. totaled
$313,466 and .$322973, for the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018,
respactivaly.  Additlonally, SCS Housling, Inc. hes advanced the limiled
partnerships funds for cash flow purposes over several years.

The Omanlzation has alse advanced funds 1o 8 related entlty_fé'r bepartment of
Housing and Urban Devslopmani (HUD) sponsorship purposes.

The tatal emounts due and expeciad to be collected from the iimited partnerships
and relatad eniities totaled $50,102 and $188,523, respecﬂvely. at May 31, 2019
and 201 8

._o,urrv INVESTMEN.T

'Southwesterd Community Services, inc. and related companies use the equity
method fo account for thelr flnanclel Interests in the following companles:

2019 - 2018

Cttyside Housing Assoclatas, LP $ (0.500) $  (9,492)
Mariborough Homes, LP . (11) 8
Payson Villege Senlor Housing Assoclates, LP (12.603) (12,491)
Rellroad Square Senlor Houslng Assoclates, LP . (1,887) (1.715)
Warwick Meadows Houslng Assoclatas, LP ' (21) (17
Woodcrast Drive Housing Associates, LP 222,842 222,846
Wostmilt Sanlor Housing, LP 78 80
Swantzey Township Housing Assodates, LP - (31.190)
Snow Brook Masdow Village Housing

Assoclates, LP = {(60,718)
Keene Highland Housing Assoclates, LP (260)  (24Y)

Pilot Health, LLC = (18.374)
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SCS Housing Developménl, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Cltyside Housing
Assoclates, LP, Marborough Homes, LP, Payson Village Senior Housing
Assoclates, LP, Wamick Moadows Housing Associales, LP, and Woodcrest
Drive Housing Assoclates, LP, 2 0.10% pariner of Raitroad Square Senlor
Housing Associates, LP, and a 1% pertner In Wasimill Senlor Housing, LP
during the years ended May 31, 2019 end 2018. .

SCS Housing, Inc. is @ 0.01% partner of Winchester Senlor Housing

Assoclates, LP, Swanzey Township Housing Assoclales, LP, Snow Brook.

Meadow Village Housing Assoclales, LP, end Keene Highland Housing
Assoclatos, LP dudng the years andad May 31, 2018 and 2018.

The ramalning 99 99% ownership Interast In Swanzay Townshlp Housing
Associntes, LP and Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Assoclates, LP ware
acqulred by Southwestam Communlly Services, Inc. during the year ending
May 31, 2018 (ses Note 12), and Lhersfore (he limlled partnership Is Included In
the consolidated financial statements for the yesr ended May 31, 2018. The
remaining 99.98% ownership interest in Winchester Sentor Housing Agsoclates,
LP was acqulred by Southwestem Community Service, inc. during the year
ended May 31, 2018 (sce Nots 12), end therefore the limited partnership Is
Included in lhe consolidaled financis! stetemants for the year ended May 31,
2018 and 2018 .

Southweslern Communily Services, Inc. was s 14.3% member of Plloi Health,
LLC during the year ended May 31, 2018 Pilot Health was tarminated during
the year ended May 31, 2018.

Summarized financlal Informauon for entities accounted for under the equlty
method, as of May 31, 2019 and 201 8, consists of the following:

4

2019 2018
Totel assets & S I45
Total llabliiiies 3 456 47 461

CepltaliMembers equity. _...3 201 (14.618)

income $ 426 $ 873
Expensas " .86:1 ' ,;'.81.-52_.5

Net Income (ioss) 238 ¢ A 3ZdR
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NOTE 9

NQTE 10

. NOTE 11

The Organlzallon malntains a'tax shellered annuity plan undar the: provisions of
Saction 403(b) of the Intamal Revenue Code. All employses who have had at
least 30 days of service to the Orgenization are eliglble to contributa 1o the plan,
The Organization beglns matching contributions after the employee has
reached one year of service. Employer contribulions ara at the Organization's
dlscrellon and lotaled $296,009 and 3289 869 for the years ended May 31,
2019 and 2018, respectively.

.RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS

Not assels with donor resirictions are avallable for the following purposes

2018 . 2018
NNECAC - Annual Conference Fund $ 5873 § 21,327
Stand Down .- 4,963

GAPS/Warm Fund 91,808 118,401
. Trangport T .

HS Parents Assoclatlon
EHS

" Total nsl assets with donor residctions

FORGIVENESS OF DEBRT.

During the year ended May 3'1 2018, the Organization realuzed forglvenass ol

. debt Income In connectlon wilh notes payable to Community Developmant

Block Grent, HUD and Community Deavelopment Finance Authority.
Forgiveness of debl Income lolaled 8388.849 for the year ended May 31, 2019.

During the year anded May 31, 2018. the Organization realizad forgiveness of
debl income In connacilon wilh notes payable 1o the County of Cheshire, HUD
and New Hampshire Housing. Forglveness of debt incoma totaled 375,971 for
the yoar ended May 31, 2018.
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NOTE 12

TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTEREST - .

During the years ended May 31, 2018 and 2018, Southwestem Oommunlty
Services. In¢. acquired g parinership InterestIn three low-income housing limited
partnerships: Winchesler, Swanzey end Snow Brook. The emaunt pald fos the
partnership interest In Winchester, Swanzay end Snow Brock was $1 each, and
‘at the time of acqulisition, Southwestem Community Services, Inc. becams the
general partner. The following is a summary of the assels and liablitigs of (he
parinership at the date of acquisition:

2018 2018
Winchester  Swanzay Show Brsgk

Date of Trensfer ' 08/1612017  06/30/2018  05/01/2019

Cash . : $ 24508 $ 12,856 $13.374
Security deposits 11,467 7,330 8,821
Cash.resarves 1641100 + 110,081 178,852
Property, net £90,842 ' 1,330,231 1,214,341
Other gssets . 12328 . B.436- - 15,778 °
Total assels 1203255 1475014 1428184
Notes payeble ' 304,073 666,002 . 885,173
Othar Llabliitles , 222,000 87,108 140,118
Tote! llabllitlies . ' 328082 ._754010  ,.80%5:292
Partners’ capltal S 1 A £k 729'804 822,872

Pariners’ capital praviously facorded

as an Invasimenl in related parties . [53,888) 31190 g0 7]' 8

Partners’ capital transfarred 3423288 $753.004. S883:588.

5
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NOTE 13

NOTE 14

NOTE 15

AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY

of'‘May 31, 2018 and 2018:

Financlal assels at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts recelvable
Due from related party
Notes racelvable
interest recelvable
Cash escrow and ressrve funds

Tolal financial assate

Less amounts not available to be used
within ons year:

Due from related pary
Notes recalvable
Interast recalvatie
Reserve funds

Tota! amounts not avallabis within one year

. The following represents Southwestern Community Services’ financial assets as

2019 2018
§ 882187 - § 1080895
1,245,826 1,695,488
69,102 188,523
112,000 112,000
45547 . 45547
o 'B48a34 517,853
3193886 .3:046,304
(59,102) . (188,523)
. (112,000) " {112,000)
(45.547) (45,547)
. {720,488) _lssﬁ.ﬂﬁg)

Financlal essets avallable to meet gensral
. expendhtures over the naxt twalve months

The Qrganlzation has & goa! to maintain unrestricted cash on hand to meet 30
days of nomal operating expenditures, which are, on average, approximately

. $4.224000 end $1,183,000 el May 31, 2018 and 2018, respecilvely. The

Organization has 8 $250,000 line of cred!t avallable to mest cash flow needs.

ECLASSIF C ON

“Certaln arfiounts and- secounts from the prior years ﬁnanctal stataments were .

reclassifiod to enhance comparablity with the cument year's financlal stalements.

‘Subsequent evanls are evants or transactions that occur after the statement of

financla! position date, but before financial statements are avsllable to be issued.

" Recogntzed subsequent evants are svents or transactions that provide addillona!

evidenoe about conditlons that existed at the statement of flnancial pasiiion date.
Including the estimates Inherent in the process of preparing financial slatements.
Nonrecognized subsaguen! events are evenis thal provide evidence about
condlitions that did not exist et the statement of financial position date, but arose
afer tha! date. Mansgement has evaluated subsequent events through
November 5, 2018, the datle the financlal stalements were aval!at_:le 10 be issued.
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NOTE-t

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

NOTE 4

NOTES

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

_FOR THE YEAR ENOEBMAY-33, 2019;

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Tha accompanylig scheduls of expenditures of Fedara! Awards (the Schedule)
Includes the federal award actimity of Southweslem Cormmunlly Services, Inc.
undar programs of the faderal govemmant for the ysar ended May 31, 2018. The:
Information In this Schedule is presentsd in accorgance with the requirements of
Tile 2 US. Code of Federal Regulstions Pant 200, Unlformm Administrative
Requiroments, Cost Principles, end Audit Requiremonts far Fadsral Awards
{Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only 8 selected portion of
the opersilons of Southwestem Community Senvices, Inc., It Is not intended to
and doas not present the financlal position, changes In net assals, or cash flows”
of the Omanlzailon ;

SUMMARY. OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING'POLICIES
-Expandnuras répored on {hs Schedule eré reponed on the accruel basly of ;
acoounting. Such expenditures ars recognized following 'the cost principles
contginad {n the Unlform Guldance, wherein cengln types of axpendltures are not’
allowabls or are [Imited &5 to reimbursemant.

NDJRECT COST
Southwastam Commun!‘ly Services, Inc. has elected not to uss the ten percant
da minimls Indirect cost rate allowed under.the Uniform Guidance. ]

FOOD. DONATION.
Nanmonelary- esslstance is reported In the Schedule at the falr value of tHe

- commodities received and disbursed.

SUBRECIPIENTS.

. Southwastern Communlty Services, Inc. had no subreclplents for the year endad

May 31, 2018,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ONJINTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMEN T AUDITING STANDARDS.

-

To the Board of Directors of
Soulhwastern Community Services, Inc.
Keene, Naw Hampshir

We have audiled, in accordance with the audillng standards penarally accepled In the Unlted
Slates of America and the slandards applicable to financial audils contained In Government!’
Audiling Standards issued by the Comptrolter General of the United Stales, tha consolidated
financial statements of Southwaestem Communily Services. Inc. (s New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companles, which comprse the consolidated statement of financial
position 85 of May 31, 2019, and the rolalad consolidated siatements of aclivities, cash flows,
and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related consolidated noles to the
financlal statements, and have issued our repori thereon dated November 5, 2018;

.In planning and performing our audit of lhe.oonsondaled financial statements, we oonsldéred
Southwesten Community Services, Inc.’s intemal contro! over financial reporling (intamal

.control) to detemina the audit procedures thal are gppropriate’in the circumstances for the .

purpose of expressing our opinion_on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinlon on the effectiveness of Southwestem Communily Services,
Inc.'s intermel control. Accordingly, we do nol express an opinion on lhe effscliveness of
Soulhwaestern Community Services, Inc.'s intemal control.

A deficiency in intesnal control exists when the design or operatien of a control does not allow
managemeant or employees. Ia the normal coursa of pedorming their assigned functions, to
preveni, or delecl and correct, misstalements on a limely basis. A material weakness is 8

daficiency, or combinalion of deficiencles, in inlemal control, such that there is a reasdnable -

possibility that 8 material misstatemnent of the entity’s consolidated financial stalements wil} not
be pravented, or detected and cotrected, on 2 timely basis. A significant deficlancy Is a
deficiency, or 8 combinalion of deficiencies. in inlernal control thal is less severe than e
material weakness, yel important enough to.ment attanlion by those ¢harged with govemance.

3N



Qur consideration of the internal control was for the limiled purpose described in the first
paragraph of this seclion and was not dasigned lo identify all deficlenclas In Intemal controf
that might be materdal weaknesses or srgnlﬁcant deflclencles. Given these limilations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficlencies in internal control thal we consider to be materdat
weaknassas. However, materis} weaknesses may exlst that have not baen identified.

pilance:pnd:Other Maftars:

As part of oblalning réasonable assurence about whether Southwestern Community Sarvices,
Inc.'s consolidated financlal statements are free of material misslatement, wo performed tests
of lts compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulatlons, contrscts, and grant agreémenis,
noncompliance .with which could hava & direct and material effect on the determination of
consolidated financlal statement amounts. Howover, providing sn opinton on compllance with

- those provisions was nol an objeclive of our audit, 8nd accordingly, we do nol express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that _

are required to be reported under Govemment Audlting Stendards.

bsé-of this.Rept

j'I-:ha purpose; of-thlg repon s solely to describe the ecope of our testing of interna! control end

compliance and the results of that tesﬂng, and not 1o provide an opinion on the efectivenass of
the Omganizalion's Intemat control or on'compliance. This report Is an Integral part of en audit
perffornad. In eccordance with Govemment Audliiing Slandards In’ considering the

.Organization’s intemal control and compliance. Accardingly, this communicalion is not suitable

for any other purpose.

wa. /ﬂfﬂm el/ / /@A//,é

November 5, 2019
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
. FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ONINTERNAL CONTROL

'OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED:BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE.

To the Board of Direclors of
Southwestem Community Services, Inc.
Keens, New Hampshire

We. heve eudlied .Southwestem .Comminlty Seivices;, Inc. (3 New Hampshire . ndhgrofit
corporation) and relaled companies’ compllance :wilh .the types of compllence requilréments
described in the QM8 Comptiance Supplemen! that coyld have 8 direc and malerial effect on
each of Southwesiem Comimunily Seivlcés, Inc.'s major:(ederal programs for the year énded May
31, 2010. Southwastemn Comitunily Sarvices, Inc.'s major fedefs! pidgrams are identlfigd 1% the
summary of audligrs’ resulls seclion of the accompanying schedule of findings and queslionad
cosls. - : : . : .

ont's Responslbillt _ _ ,
anagqomant Is: caspons tjlr for compliance wilh the:faderal stalutes, regulations, and the ferms
ewards dpplicable to its federa) programs.

1] 5
and condllions of lls federe

o siBllity
UE reBpQns

JAud cffé'{lf\fé‘g;'

; epQNEIBYIY, 1510 8xpross an opinion on compliance for .gach of Soulhwestern (:";,th‘frjjunily
Servicas, inc.’s mejor fedaral programs based on our 8Udil of the typés. of ¢ompliance

=

ulrements referred to above. We conducted our audil of compliance In sccordance wilh -

feq ¢
‘auditing slandards generally accepted in the United States of America; lhe standerds applicable to
finandlat sudits contalned In Government Auditiig Standerds, Issued by the Complrolier General
of the United States; and Tlle 2 U.S. Code of Fedsral Regulations Part 200, Uniform

Adminisirative Raquirements, Cost "Principles, end Auvdil Requirements for Federal Awards’

(Unlform: Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform
the -audit "to: obtain reasonable’ assurance about wheliher :noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements refered to above thal could have 3 élrect:and:material effecl on a major
fedoral program occurred. An audil Includes examining, on 8 tesl basis, evidence aboul
Southweslem Community Servicas, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and perfomming
such other procedures s we considered necessary. in the circumslances.

We believe that our sudil provides a reasonable basls for our opinion on compliance for each
maloé féderal plogram. However. oUr audit does not provide 2 lagal delermination of
Soulhweslern Communily Sgivices, Inc.'s compliance.

3
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3 ‘.-SE""—"‘E’es. Inc. complied, in all material res cis, with the

s
L nign; Southwastem Communh . .
compliance requiremants referred o above that could have e direct and material effect on each of

mmuntty Services, Inc. Is responsible for establishing and

nagement ol Southwaste ' ;
tral over compliance with the types'of compllance requirements

rn
malritalning -effecilve Intemal con
reéferred 10 :abowe: In planning and porforming our sudit of compllance, we considerad
Southweslemn ‘Communily: Séfvices:, Inc.i8 [lamel .ContioF 'Gvat- complishce: With. tha. typds. of
requilreimenls. mag could “hav ‘e difect-and Mmaldral’ 6Hdct .on el 'major fedsral program to
doterming thevsuling, procodyrds thal &7 appropnatd in (Fe: drctmstinces 1ot thexpuipds's: of
éihﬁisﬁd'?én"ﬁﬁlﬂ%ﬁ{dnf:&ihﬁﬂé Age (g1 edeh Major Tedbsl Grdgram and 16: (4st: hﬁ’gqr;‘;%d’ on
Intéfrial Eofitiol ovércathpliance Iniaccordance wilh'ihy Uniftorh Guldants, bt ot (Briheipyrbose
of éxpressing dn Bpiigiron the effectiveness of liilerdal conitrarover compliance, Accatdlgly, we
do not express an opinlon on the effeciiveness of -Souliwastém: Commuhity 'S_ér_\iglb‘ds..';rhc_:s
intlemal control over compllance.

A g¥fictency In lﬁ?‘iﬂﬁl coiitipl gvet-carfipllanca exists:whaenthe design or ‘operation of e control
over.compliance:d9es nol &lidw management .or employees; In the ndrmal coyrse-of parforming
hdli assighed Junctlons. to pravent, -or detact and coméct, wioncomglignce: with ‘@i type of .
campliahce:mequiramenit:of.a fedsrmalipogram;on a'timaelytbasls. Amateratweakness. in Internal
conirpl over compliance I8 a deficlancy, or comblnation of ddficiencles in Intémal cantrol over
compliance, suth that there is a reasonable possiblity that matetdlnoncompliance:wiih:a.typa of
comptianoe requirement of e federal program will Aot ba:prevented: .or-delacted and corrected; on
a timely basls. A significant deficlency In Intemsl control-overicompllance: Is '@ dalilEncy.. of &
comblnation of deficencles, In Intema! control: ovar' compllance ‘wilh e typs of ‘éompiénce
requirement of a federal program that Is fase sevare:=lHan: a>materal weakness:in:IntamBl:control -
over complianca, ya! important enough to merit altention by those charged with govemance.

- Our conslderation of Intemal contro! over complisnce was for the limited purpose described In the
first'paragraph of this seclion and was nol designed to Identlfy el defictericles In (nternal contro)
ovar cémpllance that might be matertal weeknesses or significant deficlencles:"We did not [dantity
any deficlencles In Intemnal control over compllénce that we Sonslder to be matenatweakinagses.

- However, matertal waaknesses may exist that were no! Identified.

Tho pifose-f Ul ceput on tinipl coriuthiset complidols salelyas deSsHNG g toops o
out"44siing: ¢f Intarhal “Control over ‘complIEAcy nd: tha: tasullS. ‘Of ‘that: tasling :Based on ihe
- requiremidnts “of- tha Uniforn Guidanca: Accomdingly; ‘this: raport :fs nofl ‘suidbler for any othar

purpose.
Prifdestind Closoeiitia

November 5, 2018
Wolleboro, New Rampshire
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED:MAY.31,:2018-

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1.

The auditors' report axpreases an unmodified opinton on' whather the consolidated financiat
stalements of Southwestern Communlly Services, Inc. were prepared In accordance with

GAAP.
No " signfficant deficlencles disclosed durng the eudit of the consolideted financlal

statements are reported in the Independsn! Audifors’ Report on Inlemal Control Over
Finandlal Reporting end on Compllance and Other Matters Based on en- Audit of Financial

Statements Performad In Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No matedal

weaknesses are reporiad.

No .instanges of noncompliance matgrial to the consolidated financial stalements of
Southwestem Communfty Services, Inc. which would bé requlred to be reported In
accordanca with Govenmant Audliing Standerds were disclosed during the audil. -

No significant deficiencles In Intemal control over major fedsral award progrems are
reported In the Indepentfent Auditors’ Reporl on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on--intemsl: Control Ower. Commpllance Required by the Uniform Guldance. No materal
wonkndsses ara raported. .

The guﬁi,tors' report on complance for the major fedsrel award programs for. Southweetam
Community-Services, Inc. expresses an unniodifled opinlon on ali major fedaral programs.

Thete were no audll findings that are requllred (o be reported In accordance with 2 CFR

‘section 200.516(a).

The. programs fested sk, Mdjor pdgrams wers: U.S. Dapiitmént of Health and Human
Sarvicas: Lowilncgma Home. Endmy’ Assistanca, 93568, :and U.S. Depariment of
Transportalion; Formula Grants for Rural Areas, 20.508. )

The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000..

Southwaslem Comrﬁunlty Services, Inc. was da"lerminad to ba a low-tisk audites,

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT °

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None

h 1
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SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
JFOR THE YEAR ENDED:MAY: 31,2019

]’haﬁiﬁé!ﬁ no findings or quiastionad costs that wieTé: fegulred to be reparted In the Schedule
of Fitgings'and Questionsd-Co5ts for the year ended Mhy. 31, 2018,

- e A
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Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Board of Directors - Compasition ~ 2020,

ENT.

Beth Fox

Aetisai Eity Miringer/
Human Resources Director .
‘Gity ofKeenc |

Brignna Trombi.
Head $tant Poficy-Council
Parent Reptésentative

SULLIVAN COUNTY

Mary Lou Huffling
Fall MBuniain Emergenicy Faod Shielf.
Alstead Friendly Meals -

PRIVATE
| SECTOR

Kevidg: Wafterso, Cliair/Secrétary
Clarke:Companjes (rerired)

.Anne Beattie
Newport Service Organization

PUBLIC
SECTOR
P —————

Jay Kshn.
State Senptor, District 10

David Edkins
Walpole, NH

Kerry Belknip Mozcls; M:Ed.
Early Childhood:Education
River Villey-Communily Gollege

Derek Ferlang
Sulljvan County Manager
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$CS LIHEAR-& ASSURANCE 16,

Ksy Pecsonngl
Name. Job Title Salary T Baid fetin | Amoant Pasd from
this Controcie | ihis Contrecy
[ Johin Manninp Exeeutive Direclor 18167867 0% 0 D
Terro Rogers Ditectorof Enery & $56,160 50% $78.080 -

Employment.Progroms

e



John.A. Manning

‘Over 30'years of'exgerience wilh non-profil orgonizations, 'as both an
ouitside aydlior ang presemly Chipf Executivg Officer of o Large
community action agency.

i

201 ¢=Present Southwesgtermn Community Sarvices Inc.
' - .. Keéng, NH

‘Chigf-Executive Officer

Has-overal) Stratégic end operdubnal-resporislty Iof a EGimubity:adlion

. agency providing services 10, low-hd moderste income ihgividuals,

Programs-include. Hedd-Stan, Fuet Assittidce, -aid MUMipla affordabld

houslig pidjecte. RESpARsibBIES inchidé: rmalnlatilng ofgoing titelience, .

Agortuss pioqr evatAtioh aid:coASKnl Quatty. of Ahanca sdrnistration,

- fundfilsing, communiciton's Gnd cystems: Works with the Board of Dvectdde

‘orid Managembhl I3 tb inglermeM tigobiectives of SCSS stalégic glas,
ANty afigagés ol enenjiz €3 Vainladrs, board rember, eAnt
:oprimitiées; parinering chgantzstions end upders; Develops ang matniaing
strong rékbonshgps wilfr(hg Board:of Ditectort ad serve; as ex-dfficio
rhémber of the,B0a1d. Leads, cooches, devéipps ohd metainsa high-
“pérforrhanch majagement i6am, Efsiints offective’ systoms préa place to
frve adure Wik paHorance, provide.ieguids tebdback o turding' spunces
and comriurilty patners. ; i :
19902012 Soulhwe'stem Communily. Services Int:
I Keene, NH
Chict Financlal Officor

Oversees al] fiscal funcions -Supenvises @ ¢iafl. of 7. with an ‘agency
‘budgei of ower :$ 13.000.000: Also oversees ogency. propery
managemeni depariment, which manages over--300. units of. affordable
hoyrsing.: ’

1885-1695 Kocne Siste Coliogo Koana, NH
Adjunct Profesgor

Toyght evening accouring classes for their continuing  egiscation
program:

1978-1990 » John' A, Manning, Keene, NH
Eertifteq Fublic Accounianl , :
Provided public' egoouniing sendces {o.small and medium 6izeg clients:
including multfple non-profl argantzations. Performed oertified ‘audis-on
severn) dhents, induding Head Stentand other nonprofil dients

Oy



Education

19751878 KosUn.&nd Co. CPA's We'st Haitfed, -CL

Strfl Accourmtant
'Posformed ‘ol -aspecis of pubhic acooyriting fir medium sized acoounting

firm, Aligitedarge, numbér of pvaiely held.and rign-proft chedts,
1071-1075 Univerity 6f Miss. Ambirs!, Ma,
» B.S.Busiiéss Admiiisiration i Asoiuiting

Amerihn Instluié of Cénilfied Public Accbiiiilants:
NH Society of Certihed Pubbé: Aosouhinits:
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Terra Rogers

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE: Cufrent Director of Energy and Employment Programs with 10 years of
expérience in a Adn-profit setting.

-MANAGEMENT AND SOCIAL SERVICE'SKILLS

Personnel Relations o Lead and Mothvate. + inrerviewing
Strong PC.shills *  Excelient Communication +  Datglipse Management
“Humin Resoufces: s Community Outreach . +  Ttalning and Development
. Probled.Solving s Declsioii'Making & Mialntaln Confidentiality.
7
EXPERIENCE
Southwistern Community-Services [Keene/Clazémont, NH] ' 11/2006: Current

Director of Erecgyignd Employment Progrom's (11/2015- Cuirent)

Oversee all daity. operations for Fyel Assistance, Electfic Assistande, Ne:ghbor Hé1pmg Neightisr,
senigr Energy. Assistance and Assurance 16 as well as the WOrkforce Innovation and
Opportunities-Act Program (WIOA].

WIOA Erﬁplopment Coundelor {11/2006- '11/2015)

Provlde cpteer Mandgemerit seivices to ehgnble customiers: wlth 3 focu's 'on' helblr\g thém obtéin -

employment Follpws stringent guigelines and extenslive docymentation’ ta Belp ‘erisure
program 1§ running-with federal and state government regulations. Serves 2s al-alson Dbetween

_ customers,. linstructor3, schdol administrators and - businesses. Strong understanding of

community reSoutces'to help pfovide agpropriate referrals throughout the:comimunity,

Staples [various locations throighbut VT, ME, NY'ahd NH} 9/1996-12/2006
Opgrotions | Manager « §

Consistently promoted. over 8.10 year period. Establlshcd and maintained.all store opcrat]ons
.Br.oyn,i_ed,hngh ehd-customeriservice which hcrped toicofitinuously éxcéed maxirmuim sales godls.

" Fulfilled 3 broad range of MR functions, Ingluding; récruiting,. Onbibarding, evaluations; staff

ttalning, 3gmiristering Genelits, overséeing, didéiplinary -actioh and mandging stofe personiiél.
Managed staff paycoll, store stheduling, corfipany miarketing dng oversll.store.présentation.
!
EDUCATION
Gronite Staté. Coilege- Concord; NH
Bachelot of Sciénce.(BS) in Behavidral Science (Magnum Cum Eaude) Graduated Jurie 2012



